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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, JUNE 30, 2024 AND 2023
A Recommendation

1. Division and Department: Finance and Administration, Controller's Cffice

2. Introduction: The Financial Statements, June 30, 2024 and 2023 for Oakland
University (University) have been completed (Attachment B).

The audit opinion of Andrews Hooper Pavlik PLC (AHP) states, "We have audited the
financial statements of Oakiand University (University), a component unit of the State of
Michigan, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2024, and the related notes to the
financial statements, which collectively comprise the University's basic financial
statements as listed in the table of contents. In our opinion, the financial statements
referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the
University as of June 30, 2024, and the changes in its financial position and its cash
flows for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America.”

AHP’s Board of Trustees Letter (Attachment A) summarizes the audit engagement and
required communications.

Representatives from AHP presented the Financial Statements in draft form to the
Board of Trustees’ (Board) Audit Committee at the Committee’s October 18, 2024

meeting.

3. Previous Board Action: As a result of a competitive bid process, the public
accounting firm Andrews Hooper Pavlik PL.C was appointed by the Board of Trustees
(Board) on April 12, 2024.

4. Budget Implications: The annual financial audits are budgeted for in the General
Fund. No budget variances have occurred or are expected.

5. Educational Implications: None.

6. Personnel Implications: None.
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7. University Reviews/Approvals: The Financial Statements were prepared by the
Controller's Office and reviewed by the Senior Vice President for Finance and
Administration, and President, audited by AHP, and presented to the Board's Audit
Committee at its October 18, 2024 meeting.

8. Recommendation:

RESOLVED, that the Board of Trustees accepts the Financial Statements,
June 30, 2024, and 2023, which were audited by the Board of Trustee’s public
accounting firm, Andrews Hooper Pavlik PLC.

9. Attachments:
A. Board of Trustees Letter dated October 18, 2024
B. Draft Financial Statements, June 30, 2024 and 2023

Submitted to the President
on QOctcber 10 , 2024 by

Yoo

Stephen W. Madkéy

Senior Vice President for Finance and
Administration and Treasurer to the Board of
Trustees

Recommended on / OE/ E‘[ , 2024
to the Board of Trustees for approval by
Q’M Reéviewed by:

OraHirsch Pescovitz,|M.D. _\W/.ﬁ_____*___/«r
President

Joshl,fa . Merchant, Ph.D.
Chief-df Staff and
Secretary to the Board of Trustees
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¢ Introduction of Audit Team
+ AHP Representatives

Greg Soule — Partner

Randy Morse — Independent Review Partner
Kate Farwell — Senior Manager

Chas Bruske — Manager

Jacob Boerner — Senior Accountant

¢ Financial Highlights

¢ Audit Committee of the Board of Trustees Letter

» Services Provided and in Process
« Results of the Audit of the Financial Statements

« The Auditor’s Communications with Those Charged with Governance

¢  Other Questions or Comments
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October 18, 2024

Audit Committee of the Board of Trustees
Oakland University
Rochester, Michigan

We are pleased to submit this report which summarizes the results of our audit of Oakland
University (University) and other matters which we believe would be of interest to you.

Services Provided and Reports Issued or in Process
In accordance with our engagement letter, AHP provided the following services:
Audit Services:

« An audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the applicable standards in Government Auditing Standards of the financial
statements of the University for the year ended June 30, 2024, — Completed.

« An audit in accordance with Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform
Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards
(Uniform Guidance) and Government Auditing Standards for the year ended June 30, 2024, -
Completed.

« An agreed-upon procedures report as required by the NCAA Financial Audit Guidelines to
assist the University in complying with NCAA Bylaw 3.2.4.15.1. = In Process.

« Procedures as required by the State of Michigan related to the inclusion of the University's
audited financial statements in the State’s comprehensive annual financial report.  Additional
limited procedures will be required by the State to be performed later in the year, updating
our subsequent events procedures through that date. — In Process.

Monaudit Services:
+ Procedures related to the review of the 2024 990T, - In Process.

We have reviewed the services provided and confirm that we are independent of Oakland
University and its related parties.

P: 248.340.6050 | WWAW AHP. CPA | F: 248.340.6104
Andrews Mooper Pavik PLC s 8 membaer of Allndal Giobal, an associalion of krgally indepandent fnms,



Results of our Audit of the Financial Statements

The audit was conducted in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America and Government Audifing Standards and included such tests of the accounting
records and such other auditing procedures as we considered necessary for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the financial statements.

The following summarizes various matters of interest noted during our audit:

Significant Risks

As noted in our scope letter dated April 12, 2024, we identified certain areas as having
significant risks related to the potential of a material misstatement. We audited each of those
significant risks with audit procedures designed to mitigate those risks. Based on our procedures
performed, we noted no matters that need to be communicated to you,

Cybersecurity and Information Technelogy Controls

Cyberattacks are on the rise across the globe, and the cost of these attacks is ever increasing.
Because of these attacks, entities stand to lose their reputation, the ability to operate efficiently,
and proprietary information or assets. Entities may also be subject to financial and legal
liabilities. Managing this issue is especially challenging because even an entity with a highly
mature cybersecurity risk management program still has a residual risk that a material
cybersecurity breach could occur and not be detected in a timely manner. We believe
management should continue to monitor and evaluate this risk, which is a critical best practice.
Additionally, periodic assessments of the system in order to verify that the control environment
is functioning as designed are key parts of measuring associated business risk. We encourage
those charged with governance to work with management on this very important topic. I we can
be of assistance in the process, we would be happy to do so.

Adopted Audit and Accounting Standards

There were no adopted audit and accounting standards that had a material effect on the audited
financial statements.

Future Accounting Standards

+ GASB Statement No. 101, Compensated Absences

This Statement requires that liabilities for compensated absences be recognized for (1)
leave that has not been used and {2) leave that has been used but not yet paid in cash or
settled through noncash means. A liability should be recognized for leave that has not
been used if (a) the leave is attributable to services already rendered, (b) the leave
accumulates, and (c) the leave is more likely than not to be used for time off or otherwise
paid in cash or settled through noncash means.

. Leave is attributable to services already rendered when an employee has
performed the services required to earn the leave.



. Leave that accumulates is carried forward from the reporting period in which it is
earned to a future reporting period during which it may be used for time off or
otherwise paid or settled.

. In estimating the leave that is more likely than not to be used or otherwise paid or
settled, a government should consider relevant factors such as employment
policies related to compensated absences and historical information about the use
or payment of compensated absences.

The requirements of this Statement would be effective for the reporting periods beginning after
December 15, 2023, (June 30, 2025 year-end). The University will be evaluating the impact this

standard will have on the financial statements when adopted.

Scholarship Allowances

The University accounts for scholarship allowances in accordance with the alternate method
endorsed by NACUBO. This method allocated institutional aid between the discount and student
aid expense on a proportional basis. This was considered acceptable GAAP and utilized by most
public institutions.

Since the alternate method was developed, there have been significant improvements in
information technology systems to capture information more accurately and timely.

As a result, NACUBO will no longer endorse the alternate method and has issued new guidance
which will be effective for the year ended June 30, 2025. The University is currently reviewing

the new guidance and the acceptable methods for calculating the allowance.

Commitments and Contingencies

The University is the guarantor on certain faculty and staff residence mortgages. As of June 30,
2024, the amount subject to guarantee by the University was $2,892,133.

The estimated costs to complete construction projects in progress is $31.7 million as of June 30,
2024, due in large part to the construction costs associated with the renovation of West Center for
$11.1 million, improvements to O’Dowd Hall, Dodge Hall, and Kresge Library in the amount of
$2.8 million for the School of Medicine, Meadow Brook Hall Visiter Center for $2.7 million,
Science Complex renovation for $2.5 million, South Foundation Hall renovation in the amount of
$1.7 million, Human Health Building improvements of $1.3 million for the School of Nursing, and
various campus enhancement projects totaling $9.6 million. The South Foundation Hall project is
funded from the State Capital Outlay for $30.0 million, $10.0 million from the 2019 Bonds, and
$4.2 miilion from University resources. The various other campus enhancements are funded from
University resources.

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

We performed a detailed analysis of the allowance for doubtful accounts related to accounts
receivable, student loan receivables, and pledges receivable. The University determined these
allowances were adequate. Based on our testing and review of assumptions made by
management, we believe the allowance for doubtful accounts is appropriate as of June 30, 2024.



Bond [ssuance

In May 2024, the University issued $18,810,000 of general revenue refunding bonds (2024A
Bonds), with an average coupon rate of 5.0% and a net original issue premium of $1,991,716. The
2024A Bonds were issued with a final maturity date of March 1, 2039. The proceeds were utilized
to refund the Series 2014 general revenue bonds (2014 Bonds) which were utilized to refund the
Series 2009 Taxable-Build America Bonds (2009 Bonds) which funded a portion of the Human
Health Building and several infrastructure projects. As a result of the refunding, the University will
reduce its aggregate debt service payments over the remaining 15-year period by approximately
$2,583,000. The refunding will result in an economic gain of $2,023,000. The aggregate
outstanding principal on the 2014 Bonds totaled $20,430,000. A trust account was established to
redeem the 2014 Bonds on their cali date of August 5, 2024. The assets and liabifities of this trust
account are not recorded as assets or liabilities in the financial statements of the University. The
pricing resulted in a 3.57% true interest cost.

Derivative Instruments

The University has one interest-rate swap agreement, the purpose of which is to reduce overall
interest costs over the long term, The interest-rate swap is a hedging derivative associated with
the 2008 Bonds. The estimated fair value of the 2008 Swap as of June 30, 2024 was ($658,095)
and is reflected in the deferted outflows of resources section of the Statements of Net Position.
The fair value represents the estimated amount that the University would pay to terminate the
2008 Swap (termination risk), taking into account current interest rates and creditworthiness of
the underlying counterparty. The University is required to post collateral under the agreement
when the fair value is less than a negative $5,000,000 at the University’s current credit rating. As
of June 30, 2024, there was no collateral posted by the University. The counterparty’s credit
rating from Moody’s Investors Service was Baa3.

Required Communications with the Audit Committee

This section discusses our responsibilities under AICPA Professional Standards AU-C Section
260, The Auditor’s Communication with Those Charged with Governance. The following
excerpts from that standard describe the specific matters required to be communicated to you and
our responses thereto:

Our Respensibility under U.S, Generally Accepted Auditing Standards

The auditor’s standard report emphasizes that an audit conducted in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America and Governmental Auditing
Standards is designed to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance that the financial
statements are free of material misstatement and in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America (U.S. GAAP). Our report dated October 18,
2024 follows this format. Because of the concept of reascnable assurance, and because we did
not perform a detailed examination of all transactions, there is a risk that material errors,
irregularities, or illegal acts, including fraud and defalcations, may exist and not be detected by
us.

Our responsibility, as described by our professional standards, is to express opinions about
whether the financial statements prepared by management with your oversight are fairly



presented, in all material respects, in conformity with U.S. GAAP. Our audit does not relieve
you or management of your responsibilities,

As part of the audit, we considered the internal control of the University. Such considerations
were solely for the purpose of determining our audit procedures and not to provide any assurance
concerning internal control.

Planned Scope and Timing of the Audit

We performed the audit according to the planned scope and timing previously communicated to
you in our scope letter dated April 12, 2024. No matters came to our attention during our audit
that resulted in a change to our timing or scope of our procedures,

Qualitative Aspects of Accounting Practices

Management is responsible for the selection and use of appropriate accounting policies. The
significant accounting policies used by the University are described in Note A to the financial
statements. No new accounting policies were adopted and there were no changes in the
application of existing policies. We noted no transactions entered into by the Univetsity during
the year for which there is a lack of authoritative guidance or consensus. All significant
transactions have been recognized in the financial statements in the proper period.

Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statements prepared by management
and are based on management’s knowledge and experience about past and current events and
assumptions about future events. Certain accounting estimates are particularly sensitive because
of their significance to the financial statements and because of the possibility that future events
affecting them may differ significantly from those expected. The most sensitive estimates
affecting the financial statements were:

«  Fair market value of investments and swap agreement
« Other postemployment benefits

For each of the estimates listed above, we evaluated the key factors and assumptions used to
develop the estimate in determining that it is reasonable in relation to the financial statements
taken as a whole.

The disclosures in the financial statements are neutral, consistent, and clear. Certain financial
statement disclosures are particularly sensitive because of their significance to financial
statement users. The most sensitive disclosures affecting the financial statements were:

« Significant accounting policies

+ Investments and deposits with financial institutions
» Bonds payable and interest rate swaps

»  Other postemployment benefits

Difficulties Encountered in Performing the Audit

We encountered no significant difficulties in dealing with management in performing and
completing our audit.



Cortrected and Uncorrected Misstatements

Professional standards require us to accumulate all misstatements identified during the audit,
other than those that are trivial, and communicate them to the appropriate level of management.
We noted the following misstatement which management has determined is not material to the
financial statements:

+ Library book depreciation was subject to an adjustment of $2.9 million due to an error in
calculating the depreciation expense in prior years. This error was discovered and
" corrected by management during the year.

Disagreements with Management

For purposes of this letter, a disagreement with management is a disagreement on financial
accounting, reporting, or auditing matters, whether or not resolved to our satisfaction, that could
be significant to the financial statements or the auditor’s report. We are pleased to report that no
such disagreements arose during the course of the audit.

Management Representations

We have requested certain representations from management that are included in management’s
representation letter dated October 18, 2024, A copy is attached for your reference.

Management's Consultations with Other Independent Accountants

In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and
accounting matters, similar to obtaining a “second opinion” on certain situations. If a
consultation involves application of an accounting principle to the financial statements or a
determination of the type of opinion that may be expressed on those statements, our professional
standards require the consulting accountant to check with us to determine that the consultant has
all relevant facts. To our knowledge, there were no such consultations with other accountants.

Major Issues Discussed with Management Prier to Retention

We generally discuss a variety of matters, including the application of accounting principles and
auditing standards, with management each year prior to retention as auditors. However, these
discusstons occurred in the normal course of our professional relationship and our responses
were not a condition to our retention.

Other Supplementary Information

With respect to the other supplementary information accompanying the financial statements, we
made certain inquires of management and evaluated the form, content, and methods of preparing
the information to determine that the information complies with U.S. GAAP, the method of
preparing it has not changed from the prior period, and the information is appropriate and
complete in relation to our audit of the financial statements. We compared and reconciled the
other supplementary information to the underlying accounting records used to prepare the
financial statements or to the financial statements themselves.



Required Supplementary Information (RS

We applied certain limited procedures to management’s discussion and analysis, which is
required supplementary information that supplements the basic financial statements. Our
procedures consisted of inquirics of management regarding the methods of preparing the
information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our
inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the
basic financial statements. We did not audit the RSI and do not express an opinion or provide
any assurance on the RSI.

Communication of Fees for Nonaudit Services

As previously described in this letter, we performed certain nonaudit services at the request of
management and documented in an engagement letter. Fees for those services did not exceed
those noted in our engagement letter.

Management Letter

We considered the University’s internal control during the course of the audit, and we remained
alert for areas where procedures and controls could be improved. We noted no matters invelving
the internal control over financial reporting and its operation that we would consider to be
material weaknesses. However, we noted a matter involving internal control that we have
reported to management in a separate letter dated October 18, 2024,

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Audit Committee of the Board of
Trustees, the Board of Trustees, and management of Oakland University and is not intended to
be, and should not be, used by anyone other than these specified parties,

We will be pleased to respond to any comments or questions you may have concerning this
letter, our management letter, or any other aspects of our services to Oakland University.

It has been a pleasure to serve Oakland University during 2024. We would like to express our
appreciation for the cooperation and courtesy extended to us by the Audit Committee of the
Board of Trustees, the Board of Trustees, and the management and employees of the University
and look forward to continuing our association in the future.

Sincerety,

MW%«%‘L PLc



QOctober 18, 2024

Andrews Hooper Pavlik PLC
43252 Woodward Ave Suite 150
Bloomfield Hills, Michigan 48302

This tepresentation letter is provided in connection with your audit of the financial staternents of
Qakland University (University), which comprise the respective financial position and results of
operations and cash flows as of and for the year ended June 30, 2024, and the disclosures
(collectively, the “financial statements™), for the purpose of expressing an opinion as to whether
the financial statements are presented fairlty, in all material respects, in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America (U.S. GAAP).

Certain representations in this letter are described as being limited to matters that are matetial.
Items are considered material, regardless of size, if they involve an omission or misstatement of
accounting information that, in light of surrounding circumstances, makes it probable that the
judgment of a reasonable person relying on the information would be changed or influenced by
the omission or misstatement, An omission or misstatement that is monetarily small in amount
could be considered material as a result of qualitative factors.

We confirm, to the best of our knowledge and belief, as of October 18, 2024, the following
representations made to you during your audits,

Financial Statements

1) We have fulfilled our responsibilities, as set out in the terms of the audit engagement letter
dated April 12, 2024, including our responsibility for the preparation and fair presentation
of the financial statements in accordance with U.S. GAAP and for preparation of the
supplementary information in accordance with the applicable criteria.

2) The financial statements referred to above are fairly presented in conformity with U.S.
GAAP and include all financial information of the University required by U.S. GAAP to
be included in the financial reporting entity.

3) We acknowledge our responsibility for the design, implementation, and maintenance of
internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

4) We acknowledge our responsibility for the design, implementation, and maintenance of
internal control to prevent and detect fraud.

5) The methods, significant assumptions, and data used in making accounting estimates and
their related disclosures are appropriate to achieve recognition, measurement, ot disclosure
that fs reasonable and in accordance with U.S. GAAP.



6) Related party relationships and transactions, including revenues, expenditures/expenses,
loans, transfers, leasing arrangements, and guarantces, and amounts reccivable from or
payable to related parties have been appropriately accounted for and disclosed in
accordance with U.S. GAAP.

7) Adjustments or disclosures have been made for all events, including instances of
noncompliance, subsequent to the date of the financial statements that would require
adjustment to or disclosure in the financial statements.

8) The effects of the below misstatement are immaterial, both individually and in the
aggregate, to the financial statements as a whole. This misstatement is summarized below:

¢ Library book depreciation was subject to an adjustment of $2.9 million due to an
error in calculating the depreciation expense in prior years. This error was
discovered and corrected by management during the year.

9) The effects of all known actual or possible litigation, ¢laims, and assessments have been
accounted for and disclosed in accordance with U.S. GAAP,

10) Guarantees, whether written or oral, under which the University is contingently liable, if
any, have been properly recorded or disclosed.

Information Provided
11) We have provided you with:

» Access to all information, of which we are aware, that is relevant to the preparation
and fair presentation of the financial statements, such as records (including
information obtained from outside of the general and subsidiary ledgers),
documentation, and other matters and all audit or relevant monitoring reports, if
any, received from funding sources.

¢ Additional information that you have requested from us for the purpose of the audit.

¢ Unrestricted access to persons within the Universily from whom you determined it
necessary to obtain audit evidence.

¢ Minutes of the meetings of the University's Board of Trustees or summaries of
actions of recent meetings for which minutes have not yet been prepared.

12) All material transactions have been recorded in the accounting records and are reflected in
the financial statements and the schedule of expenditures of federal awards.

13) We have disclosed to you the results of our assessment of the risk that the financial
statements may be materially misstated as a result of fraud.



14) We have no knowledge of any fraud or suspected fraud that affects the University and
involves:

a. Management,
b. Employees who have significant roles in internal control, or
¢. Others where the fraud could have a material effect on the financial statements.

15) We have no knowledge of any allegations of fraud or suspected fraud affecting the
University's financial statements communicated by employees, former employees,
regulators, or others.

16) We have no knowledge of instances of noncompliance or suspected noncompliance with
provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, or grant agreements, or abuse, whose effects
should be considered when preparing financtal statements.

17) We have disclosed to you all known actual or possible litigation claims, and assessments
whose effects should be considered when preparing the financial statements.

18} We have disclosed to you the identity of the University’s related parties and all the related
patty relationships and transactions of which we are aware.

19) We have reported and disclosed amounts as deferred inflows or outflows in accordance
with the provision of GASB 87, 75, 65, and 63.

Government-specific

20 There have been no communications from regulatory agencies concerning noncompliance
with, or deficiencies in, financial reporting practices.

21) We have identified to you any previous audits, attestation engagements, and other studies
related to the audit objectives and whether related recommendations have been
implemented.

22) We have identified to you any investigations or legal proceedings that have been initiated
with respect to the period under audit.

23) The University has no plans or intentions that may materially affect the carrying value or
classification of assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities, deferred inflows of
resources, and net assets or net position.

24) We are responsible for compliance with the laws, regulations, and provisions of contracts
and grant agreements applicable to us, including tax or debt limits and debt contracts, and
legal and contractual provisions for reporting specific activities in separate funds.



25) We have appropriately identified, recorded, and disclosed all leases in accordance with
GASB No. 87.

26) We have appropriately identified, recorded, and disclosed subscription-based information
technology arrangements in accordance with GASB No. 96.

27) We have identified and disclosed 1o you all instances of identified and suspected fraud and
noncompliance with provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agrcements that
we believe have a material effect on the financial statements.

28) There are no violations or possible violations of budget ordinances, laws and regulations
{including those pertaining to adopting, approving, and amending budgets), provisions of
contracts and grant agreements, tax or debt limits, and any related debt covenants whose
effects should be considered for disclosure in the financial statements, or as a basis for
recording a loss contingency, or for reporting on noncompliance.

29)The University has satisfactory title to all owned assets, and there are no liens or
encumbrances on such assets, nor has any asset been pledged as collateral.

30} The University has complied with all aspects contractual agreements that would have a
material effect on the financial statements in the event of noncompliance.

31) The financial statements include all component units, appropriately present majority equity
interests in legally separate organizations and joint ventures with an equity interest, and

properly disclose all other joint ventures and other related organizations.

32) The financial statements include all fiduciary activities required by GASBS No. 84, as
amended.

33) The financial statements properly classify all funds and activities in accordance with GASB
No. 34, and 35.

34) Components of net position (net investment in capital assets; restricted; and unrestricted)
are properly classified and, if applicable, approved.

35) Investments, derivative instruments, and land and other real estate held by endowments are
properiy valued.

36) Provisions for uncoliectible receivables have been properly identified and recorded.

37) Expenses have been appropriately classified in or allocated to functions and programs in
the statement of activities, and allocations have been made on a reasonable basis.

38) Revenues are appropriately classified in the statement of revenues, expenses, and change
in net position.



39) Deposits and investiment securities and derivative instruments are properly classified as to
risk and are properly disclosed.

40) Capital assets, including infrastructure and intangible assets, are properly capitalized,
reported, and, if applicable, depreciated.

41) We have appropriately disclosed the University’s policy regarding whether to first apply
restricted or unrestricted resources when an expense is incurred for purposes for which
both restricted and unrestricted net position is available and have determined that net
position is properly recognized under this policy.

42) We acknowledge our responsibility for the required supplementary information (RSI). The
RS is measured and presented within prescribed guidelines and the methods of
measurement and presentation have not changed from those used in the prior period. We
have disclosed to you any significant assumptions and interpretations underlying the
measurement and presentation of the RSI.

43) With respect to the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards (SEFA):

s  We acknowledge our responsibility for presenting the SEFA in accordance with
U.S. GAAP, and we believe the SEFA, including its form and content, is fairly
presented in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America. The methods of measurement and presentation of the
SEFA have not changed from those used in the prior period, and we have disclosed
to you any significant assumptions or interpretations underlying the measurement
and presentation of the supplementary information.

» If the SEFA is not presented with the audited financial statements, we will make
the audited financial statements readily available to the intended users of the
supplementary information no later than the date we issue the supplementary
information and the auditor’s report thereon.

44) With respect to federal award programs:

¢ We are responsible for understanding and complying with, and have complied with
the requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 200,
Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements
Jor Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance), including requirements relating to
preparation of the schedule of expenditures of federal awards.

»  We acknowledge our responsibility for preparing and presenting the schedule of
expenditures of federal awards (SEFA) and related notes in accordance with the
requirements of the Uniform Guidance, and we believe the SEFA, including its
form and content, is fairly presented in accordance with the Uniform Guidance, The
methods of measurement or presentation of the SEFA have not changed from those



used in the prior period and we have disclosed to you any significant assumptions
and interpretations underlying the measurement or presentation of the SEFA.

If the SEFA is not presented with the audited financial statements, we will make
the audited financial statements readily available to the intended users of the SEFA
no later than the date we issue the supplementary information and the auditor's
report thereon.

We have identified and disclosed te you all of our government programs and related
activities subject to the Uniform Guidance compliance audit, and have included in
the SEFA, expenditures made during the audit period for all awards provided by
federal agencies in the form of federal awards, federal cost reimbursement
contracts, loans, loan guarantees, property (including donated surplus property),
cooperative agreements, interest subsidies, insurance, food commodities, direct
appropriations, and other direct assistance.

We are responsible for understanding and complying with, and have complied with,
the requirements of federal statutes, regulations, and the terms and conditions of
federal awards related to each of our federal programs and have identified and
disclosed to you the requirements of federal statutes, regulations, and the terms and
conditions of federal awards that are considered to have a direct and material effect
on each major program

We are responsible for establishing, designing, implementing, and maintaining, and
have established, designed, implemented, and maintained, effective internal control
over compliance for federal programs that provides reasonable assurance that we
are managing our federal awards in compliance with federal statutes, regulations,
and the terms and conditions of federal awards that could have a material effect on
our federal programs. We believe the internal controt system is adequate and is
functioning as intended.

We have made available to you all federal awards (including amendments, if any)
and any other correspondence with federal agencies or pass-through entities
relevant to federal programs and related activities.

We have received no requests from a federal agency to audit one or more specific
programs as a major program.

We have complied with the direct and material compliance requirements, including
when applicable, those set forth in the OMB Compliance Supplement, relating to
federal awards and have identified and disclosed to you all amounts questioned and
all known noncompliance with the direct and material compliance requirements of
federal awards.

We have disclosed any communications from federal awarding agencies and
passthrough entities concerning possible noncompliance with the direct and

6



material compliance requirements, including communications received from the
end of the period covered by the compliance audit to the date of the auditor's report.

We have disclosed to you the findings received and related corrective actions taken
for previous audits, attestation engagements, and internal or external monitoring
that directly relate to the objectives of the compliance audit, including findings
received and corrective actions taken from the end of the period covered by the
compliance audit to the date of the auditor's report.

Amounts c¢laimed or used for matching were determined in accordance with
relevant guidelines in OMB's Uniform Guidance (2 CFR part 200, subpart E}.

We have disclosed to you our interpretation of compliance requirements that may
have varying interpretations.

We have made available to you all documentation related to compliance with the
direct and material compliance requirements, including information related to
federal program financial reports and claims for advances and reimbursements.

We have disclosed to you the nature of any subsequent events that provide
additional evidence about conditions that existed at the end of the reporting period
affecting noncompliance during the reporting period.

There are no such known instances of noncompliance with direct and material
compliance requirements that occurred subsequent to the period covered by the
auditor's report.

No changes have been made in internal control over compliance or other factors
that might significantly affect internal control, including any corrective action we
have taken regarding significant deficiencies or material weaknesses in internal
control over compliance, subsequent to the period covered by the auditor's report.

Federal program financial reports and claims for advances and reimbursements are
supported by the books and records from which the financial statements have been
prepared.

The copies of federal program financial reports provided to you are true copies of
the reports submitted, or electronically transmitted, to the respective federal agency
or pass-through entity, as applicable.

We have monitored subrecipients, as necessary, to determine that they have
expended subawards in compliance with federal statutes, regulations, and the terms
and conditions of the subaward and have met the other pass-through entity
requirements of the Uniform Guidance.



* We have issued management decisions for audit findings that relate to federal
awards made 1o subrecipients and such management decisions have been issued
within six months of acceptance of the audit report by the Federal Audit
Clearinghouse.

* We have considered the results of subrecipient audits and have made any necessary
adjustments to our books and records.

s We have charged costs to federal awards in accordance with applicable cost
principles.

o  Weare responsible for and have accurately prepared the summary schedule of prior
audit findings to include all findings required to be included by the Uniform
Guidance, and we have provided you with all information on the status of the
follow-up on prior audit findings by federal awarding agencies and pass-through
entities, including all management decisions.

e We are responsible for and have ensured the reporting package does not contain
protected personally identifiable information.

e We are responsible for and have accurately prepared the auditee section of the Data
Collection Form as required by the Uniform Guidance.

e We are responsible for taking corrective action on each audit finding of the
compliance audit and have developed a corrective action plan that meets the
requirements of the Uniform Guidance.

e We have disclosed to you all contracts or other agreements with service
organizations, and we have disclosed to you all communications from the service

organizations relating to noncompliance at the service organizations.

45} In regards to the Form 990, 990-T, and related state return assistance and review performed
by you, we have:

* Made all management decisions and performed all management functiens.

* Designated an individual with suitable skill, knowledge, or experience to oversee
the services.

¢ Evaluated the adequacy and results of the services performed.

e Accepted responsibility for the results of the services.



General

46) Arrangements with financial institutions involving repurchase, reverse repurchase, or
securities lending agreements, compensating balances, or other arrangements involving
restrictions on cash balances and line-of-credit or similar arrangements, have been properly
recorded or disclosed in the financial statements uniess disclosed to you and agreed that
disclosure is not required.

47} Provision, when material, has been made to reduce excess or obsolete inventories to their
estimated net realizable value.

48) Capital assets have been evalualed for impairment as a result of significant and unexpected
decline in service utility. Impairment loss and insurance recoveries, if any, have been
properly recorded.

49} Management considers the decline in value of debt or equity securities to be temporary.

50) We have complied with all aspects of debt and other contractual agreements that would
have a material effect on the financial statements in the event of noncompliance.

51) There were no oral or written commitments, contracts, or leases in existence during or at
the end of the year that have not been brought to your attention.

52) There were no defaults in principal-interest, sinking fund, reserve requirements, or
redemption provisions with respect to any issue of securities or credit agreements, and no
breach of covenants of the related indenture or agreement.

53) We believe that the majority of our grants are either of a reimbursement nature or require
us to return unused funds. Accordingly, we have recorded advances received as unearned
revenue.

54) We have reviewed all public-private, public-public, and availability payment arrangements
in accordance with GASB Statement No. 94. Our review indicated that these arrangements
were considered short-term and not material; therefore, the adoption of GASB Statement
No. 94 did not result in any amounts being recorded in the financial statements.

55} We have evaluated and classified any subsequent events as recognized or nonrecognized
through the date of this letter. No events, including instances of noncompliance, have
occurred subsequent to the balance sheet date and through the date of this letter that would
require adjustment to, or disclosure in, the aforementioned financial statements or in the
schedule of findings and questioned costs, unless otherwise disclosed.
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Report of Independent Auditors

To the Board of Trusiees
Oakland University
Rochester, Michigan

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opindon

W have audited the financial statements of Oakland University (University), a component unit of the State of Michigan, as
of and for the year ended June 30, 2024, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the
University s basic financial staternents as listed in the table of conents.

In our opinson, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the
University as of June 30, 2024, and the changes in i3 financial position and its cash flows for the vear then ended in
accordance with accoanting principles generally accepted in the United States of America

Basis for (pinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAS)
and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Avdittng Standards, issued by the Compiroller
General of the United States. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities
fior the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are required to be independent of the University and to
meel our ather ethical respoasibilities in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our awdit. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide o basis for our audit opinioen,

Responsibilities of Managemens for the Flnanclal Staterments

Management i% responsible fior the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal
comtrod relevant (o the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from materinl masstntemsent,
whether dug to fraud or error,

In preparing the financial stalements, managenvent is fequined 1o evaluste whether there are conditions or events, considered
in the nggregate, that rise substantinl doubt abowt the University's ability to continue a5 a going concem for twelve months
bevond the finoncial statement date, including any currently known information that may raise substantial doubt shortly
thereafter.

Awnditor's Respousibilivies for the Awdit of the Fipapcial Stotements

Chir objectives are 1o obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial sisements a5 a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due fo fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that inchedes our opinion, Reasonable assurance
is a high bevel of assurance bui is not absolwte assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an medit conducted in accordance
with GAAS and Govermarent Auditing Standareds will always detect a material misstatement when it exists, The risk of not
detecting o material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from emor, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, inteniional omissions, misrepresentaiions, or the override of intermal control. Misstatements are considered
mnterial if there 1% o substantial likelibood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by
a reasonnble user based on the financial statements,
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In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS and Goverament Anditfing Stondards, we!

«  Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

» Identify and nssess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or emor, and
design and perform sudit procedures responsive to those risks, Such procedures include examining, on a test basis,
evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements,

«  Obtain an undersanding of internal control relevant o the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpese of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the University"s intemal
control. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

»  Evaluate the appropriatencss of accounting policies used and the reasenableress of significant accounting estimates made
by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the financial statements.

«  Conclude whether, in cur judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial
doubt about the University's ability to conlinue as a going concern for a reasonable period of time.

We are required 1o commumicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope nnd
timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and cerain internal control related matters that we identified during the adst,

hiver Minniers
Prior Perlod Financial Statemenis

The basic financial statements of Oakland University as of and for the vear ended June 30, 2023 were audited by oiher auditors
whose report dated December 4, 2023 expressed an unmodified opinion on those hasic financial statements.

Required Supplesremtary fformalion

Accounting principles generally accepied in the United States of America require that the management’s discussion and
analysis and the schedule of changes in total OPEB liability and relsted ratios be presented to supplement the basic financial
staterents. Such information is the respansibility of management and, although not a part of the basic financial statements,
is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting
for placing the financial statements in an approprinte operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain
limited procedures to the required sapplementary information in accordance with suditing standards generally accepted in
the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information
and comparing the information for consistency with management™s responses to our inguiries, the basic financial statements,
and other knowledge we obtained during ocur audit of the basic financial staterments, We do not express an opinion or provide
any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an
opinion or provide any assurince.

Other Reporting Required by Govermnrent Auditling Stinndards

In accordance with Govermmeni  Awiting  Standords, we have also  issued  our  report  dated
October 18, 2024 on our consideration of the University's internal control over financinl reporting and on our tests of its
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of
that report is solely to describe the scope of our tesiing of imernal coatrol over financial reporting and compliance and the
results of thai testing, and not te provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the University’s intemal control over financial
reparting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Goversumem Awditing
Stemelards in considering the University’s internal control over financial reporting and comipliance.

DRAFT

Bloomfield Hills, Michigan
Oetaber 18, 2024
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Oakland University

Management's Discussion and Analysis (unaudited)
June 30, 2024 and 2023

Introduction

Following is Management's Discussion and Analysis of the financial activities of Oakland University
{University, Oakland or OU) for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2024 with selected comparative information
for the vears ended June 30, 2023 and 2022.

The University is a state-supported institution offering a diverse sét of academic programs, from
baccalaureate to doctoral levels, as well as programs in continuing education. The University is recognized
as one of the country's 133 doctoral/high research activity (R2) universities by the Camegie Foundation for
the Advancement of Teaching. The University currently offers |17 baccalaureate degree programs and 128
graduate and certificate programs. The University's student-centered education offers students
opportunities to work directly on research projects with expert faculty who bring current knowledge into
the classroom,

The University is considered a component unit of the State of Michigan (State). Accordingly, the
University's financial statements are included in the State’s annual comprehensive financial report.

This analysis is designed to focus on current financial activities; it should be read in conjunction with the
University's financial statements and footnotes to the financial statements, This discussion, financial
statements, and related footnotes have been prepared by and are the responsibility of Umiversity

management.

Fiscal Year 2024 Enrollment and Operations Highlights

s In fiscal vear 2024, student headcount enrollment for the fall 2023 semester decreased by 1.2% 1o
15,922, Undergraduate enroliment was 12,719 (80%) and graduate enrollment was 3,203 (20%). In
fiscal year 2023, student headcount enrollment for the fall 2022 semester decreased by 6.2% to 16,108,
Undergraduate enrollment was 12,841 (80%) and graduate enrollment was 3,267 (20%). The
enrollment decrenses are attributable to the decline in high school graduates within Michigan. The
majority of the University's students are Michigan residences and projections indicate a continual
decline of high school graduates through 2030,

s Enrollment based on Fiscal Year Equated Students (FYES) decreased 1.6% to 14,151 and 5.5% 1o
14,386 for fiscal years 2024 and 2023 respectively, A five-year summary of historical enrollment is
presented below.

Historical Enrollment
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Management's Discussion and Analysis (unaudited)
June 30, 2024 and 2023

= In August 2023, Oakland University opened the Career and Life Design Center (CLDC), formerly
Career Services. Students are encouraged to wtilize the resources provided by the CLDC to learn about
career paths, Crakland's other resources, and job opportunities. The CLDC also provides resources 1o
enhance stedents’ professional development with resume reviews, headshots, and staff members to set
students up on Linkedin and Handshake.

+ [nSeptember 2023, student minimum wages increased across campus 1o $15 per hour for undergraduate
students and master's degree graduate assistants, and 1o $25 per hour for doctoral graduate assistants.
The purpose of the increase was to assist students in keeping up with expenses, increasing their quality
of lifie through education, giving more feasible job opportunities through campus employment,

= |n October 2023, Oakland University approved its new Master of Science in Finance degree program
beginning in the Winter 2024 semester. The program covers a wide range of topics including
investments, corporate finance, risk management, and credit analysis. The Masters in Finance program
provides students with a valuable addition to their knowledge surrounding finance and cultivates
connections with students, faculty and industry members,

» InOctober 2023, Oakland University received a $2 million grant from the National Science Foundation
Research Trainee Program to assist graduate students with training in data analytics, scientific research,
and entreprencurship, Students within the College of Ants and Sciences as well as students in the School
of Business Administration will work collaboratively under this to utilize research and apply it in a
commercial sense.

« In March 2024, Oakland University's men's basketball team won the Horizon League and punched
their ticket into the NCAA men's March Madness tournament. The team entered as the Number 14
seed within the South Region and played against Mumber 3 seed University of Kentucky. Oakland upset
Kentucky, 80-76, with stellar performances from all players, and led by Coach Greg Kampe. This
season was Kampe's 40th for Oakland, who is the current longest tenured coach in NCAA men's
basketball, Oakland then fell to NC State in an overtime thriller.

o In Aprl 2024, Oakland University's MBA and Executive MBA programs were listed in the CED
Magazine's 2024 Global MBA rankings, Oakland was also listed as a Tier One Global MBA school.
The Online MBA program was listed at #49 overall globally and #1 for Michigan, The Executive MBA
program was listed at #37 overall globally and #1 for Michigan as well,

= [nMay 2024, Oakland University opened the School of Engineering and Computer Science’s Research
and Innovation Center {RIC), a 48,700 square foot facility located in Rochester Hills and it will house
bioengineering, mechanical, electrical, industrial, and computer science labs, and serve as a hub for
research conducted in partnership with industry. The RIC will be utilized for student learning
opportunities as well as providing tools for industry 1o test their equipment within this University
Tacility,
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Management's Discussion and Analysis (anaudited)
June 30, 2024 and 2023

Owerview of the Financial Statements

This annual report consists of financial statements which have been prepared in accordance with the
“husiness-type” activities requirements of Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Staterment
No. 34, Basic Financial Statemenis-and Management's Discussion and Analysis-for State and Local
Governmrents, and GASB Statement Mo, 35, Basic Financial Sratenents and Management's DNscussion
and Analysis for Publle Colleges and Universities. The fundamental objective of the financial statements
is to provide an overview of the Uiniversity's economic condition. The statements and their primary purpase
are discussed below,

o  Satement of Met Position: This statement presents information on the University's assets, deferred
outflows, liahilities, deferred inflows, and net position (assets plus deferred outflows less liabilities and
deferred inflows) as of the end of the fiscal vear. Met position s displayed in four components — net
investment in capital assets; restricted nonexpendable; restricted expendable; and unrestricted.  Net
position is one indicator of the current financial condition of the University, while the change in net
position serves as a useful indicator of whether the financial position is improving or deteriorating.

: : PN5es, 8 Ange: n; This stalement presents the operating
n:.sulls of the Ll'nweml'_n.r, ats well as nnnmmmhng revenues and expenses. The statement also presents
information that shows how the University's net position has changed during the fiscal year,

s Statement of Cash Flows: This statement presents information about the University's cash receipts and
cash payments during its fiscal year. Cash activities are classified in the following categories: operating
activities, noncapital financing activities, capital financing activities, and investing activities.

The University's financial statements can be found on pages 16, 17, and 18 of this financial report.

MNotes bo the Financial Siatements

The footnotes provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of the data provided
in the financial statements. The University's notes to the financial statements can be found on pages 19-49
of this financial report.

Required Supplementary Information

The required supplementary information provides additional information relative to the other
postemployment benefit liability. The University's required supplementary information can be found on
page 50 of this financial report.
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Management's Discussion and Analysis (unaudited)
June 30, 2024 and 2023

University Financial Statement Summaries
University Statemenis of Net Position
The University's nel position is summarized in the following Condensed Statements of Net Position:

Condensed Statemenis of Nei Position

June 30, SaChange S hampe
2021 2024-3023 2023-2022
2024 2023 (s restated)
(in thousamds)
Asipls
Currend asseis, restated 5 96292 S 102,495 5113121 -65%% A%
Capitnl nssets, nel 686,478 667 597 623,261 kS i
Oither noncurrent assets 395,808 357,178 ¥y o) 1% 4%
Total assets 1.178.57H 1,127,270 1,107,659 5% %
Deferred outfllows of resonrces T.438 7,700 1,632 5% 1%
Liabilities
Carrent liabilitics 29,490 94,645 o0, 138 % %
Moncurrent liabilities 331,955 402427 418.919 585 6%
Total liabilities 481,445 497,072 519,057 3% 1
Deferred inflows of resources 63 22678 19,922 16% | 4%
et investment in capilal assets 319,208 288,132 250,364 1% 1%
Restricied nonexpendable 51,841 49,923 48, 190 % A%
Restricted expendable 71513 67,054 0,213 % 1%
Unresiricted 233,024 200,011 212,545 1% -18
Total nel position 5 677,976 5 615,220 § 580,312 [0 %

The University's total asseis were $1,178.6 million, $1,127.3 million, and $1,107.7 million at June 30,
2024, 2023, and 2022 respectively. The University’s largest asset is i1s investment in capital assets,
including land, land improvements, infrastructure, buildings, equipment, library acquisitions, construction
in progress, and right 1o use subscription assets. Capital assets represent 58%, 59%, and 56% of the
University's total assets at June 30, 2024, 2023 and 2022 respectively. Capital expenditures totaled $51.4
million in 2024, $72.6 million in 2023, and $53.7 million in 2022, Included in capital expenditures for
2024 were $16.7 million for South Foundation Hall renovation and expansion, $9.6 million for West Center
renovations, $8.9 million of improvements to O Dowd Hall, Dodge Hall, and Kresge Library for the School
of Medicine, $3.7 million for Vamer Hall renovations, $2.4 million for the Meadow Brook Hall Visitor
Center, 1.4 million in improvements 10 the Recreation Center, and $2.2 million in right to use subscription
assets, Additional capital expenditures of $6.5 million include other campus enhancement projects,
Depreciation expense was $32.4 million in 2024, $28.2 million in 2023, and $27.5 million in 2022. The
financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2022 have been restated in order 1o adopt GASB Statement
Mo. 96. The adoption of GASB 96 is further described in Note 1.
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Management's Discussion and Analysis (unaudited)
June 30, 2024 and 2023

Current assets consist primarily of cash and cash equivalents and receivables due within one year, Cash and
cash equivalents decreased $21.4 million 1o $45.8 million at June 30, 2024 largely due to a decrease in sales
of investments and an increase in supplier payments, Accounts receivable increased $13.7 million to $29.3
million. Other current assets of $21.1 million include a State operating appropriation receivable of $13.1
million, $4.7 million in deposits and prepaid expenses, $1.6 million in inventory, and $0.9 million in
pledges receivable.

Onher noncurrent assets consist primarily of restricted cash and cash equivalents, endowment investments,
other long-term investments and capital assets. Restricted Cash decreased $%.3 million for bond proceeds
spent due to major construction related expenditures during the year. Endowment investments were $151.5
million at June 30, 2024, $136.7 million at June 30, 2023, and $124.9 million at June 30, 2022. The increase
in the endowment fair market value was dee to favorable market returns, The total returns, net of fees, on
the University's endowment investments were 13.7% for 2024, 13.7% for 2023, and -15.1% for 2022. Other
long=term investments were $232.0 million at June 30, 2024, $199.0 at June 30, 2023, and $190.9 million
at June 30, 2022, and include fixed income and equity securities. The increase is primarily attributed to
favorable market conditions. The total returr on the University's other long-term investments was 8.4% for
2024, 3.6% for 2023, and -4.6% for 2022, net of fees. The University’s investments are being managed
according to Board policies.

All investmemts held by the University can be liquidated to cash within 90 days or less without incurring
additional fees, with the exception of the private equity holding and hedge funds,

Deferred outflows of resources were $7.2 million at June 30, 2024, $7.7 million at June 30, 2023, and $11.6
million at June 30, 2022. Deferred outflows of resources consists of the accumulated change in fair value
of the 2008 Swap, the deferral of swap termination costs for the 2001 Bonds, and changes to the Universitys
retiree health care plan for postemployment benefits in accordance with GASB Statement No. 75,
Aceounting and Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefits Other than Pensions (QPEB). The
decrease in the deferred outflows of resources is primarily due to the $0.4 million change in the fair market
value of the 2008 Swap, and a £0.1 million decrease to the retiree health care valuation.

The University”s total liabilities were $481.4 million at June 30, 2024, $497.1 million at June 30, 2023, and
£519.1 million at June 30, 2022. Current liabilities consist primarily of sccounts payable, accrued expenses,
current portion of long-term liabilities, current portion of other postemployment benefits, and uneamed
revenue, The $4.8 million increase in current liabilities is largely attributable to an increase in uneamed
revenue primarily due to contract revenue received in advance to fund the Universily"s Nurse Scholars
program which was partially offset by a decrease in the current portion of long-term liabilities due to the
payoiT of the 1998 variable rate demand bonds. Noncurrent liabilities are comprised primarily of bonds and
notes pavable and represent 79.3% of the University's total liabilities as of June 30, 2024, §1.0%% as of June
30, 2023, and 83% as of June 30, 2022. Noncurrent long-term liabilities decreased by $20.5 million
primarily duc to a $17.8 millien decrease in long term liabilities related to bond principal payments and
amortization of bond premiums; $1.9 million decrease in other postemployment benefits (OPEB) as a result
of actuarial analysis used 1o determine the cost of the current retiree health insurance benefit program; $0.4
millien decrease in derivative instruments consisting of the accumulated change in fair value of the 2008
Swap; and $0.4 million decrease in uncarned revenue.
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Deferred inflows of resources were $26.4 million as of June 30, 2024, $22.7 million as of June 30, 2023,
and £19.9 million as of June 30, 2022, Deferred inflows of resources consist of $12.3 million in OPEB
assumptions in accordance with GASB Statement No. 75, Accounting and Financial Reporting for
Postemployment Benefits Other than Pensions; §9.0 million in irrevocable splii-interest agreements in
accordance with GASE Statement No. 81, frrevacable Split Interest Agreememnis, $5.1 million of which is
held by a third party in which the University has a beneficial interest; $2.8 million in early extinguishment
of debt, and $2.3 million in recognition of leases in accordance with GASE Statement Mo, 87 Leases.

The following graph shows net position by classification and restriction:

Classification of Net Position
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The University's net position consists of net investment in capital assets, restricted and unrestricted.
Restricted expendable net position represents assets whose use is restricted by a party independent of the
University, including restrictions related to grants, contracts, and gifts. Restricted nonexpendable net
position consists of gifts that have been received for endowment purposes. Unrestricted net position
represents assets of the University that have not been restricted by parties independent of the University.

Unrestricted net position includes funds the Board and University management have designated for specific
purposes, as well as amounts that have been contractually commitied for goods and services that have not
been received as of the end of the fiscal year.
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The following summarizes the intemnal designations of unrestricted net position:

Jume 3,
224 23
(i thonsands)
Auxiliary enterprises 5 1313 5 2082
Capital projects and repair reserves 64,673 64,714
Funds designated for departmental use 02174 653,373
Funds functioning as endowments 16826 24,267
Giifts amd investment income reserves T 161 S2.597
Retirement and insurance reserves 4,867 G78
Total Unrestricted Met Position ____! 213024 £210,111

Auxiliary enterprises consist of the operating fund balances at year end for the various auxiliary units, the
largest of which are University Housing, Meadow Brook Estate, Golf & Leamning Center, and Oakland
Center.

Capital projects and repair reserves consist of the unexpended portion of ongoing capital projects, reserves
for plant renewal, and bond sinking funds. The decrease is primarily due to a decrease in reserves for debt
service related to paying off the 1998 Bonds. This was offset by increases in repair and maintenance
reserves and increases in balance related to ongoing projects at year end.

Funds designated for departmental use consist of specific projects earmarked by various depariments.
Beginning in fiscal year 2023, balances previously characterized as encumbrances and carryforward are
now included in this category. Encumbrances represent financial commitments (i.c. purchase orders) for
which the ordered items have not been received or paid by fiscal vear end. Carryforwards are funds for

ental use in the upcoming fiscal year for which financial commitments have not been executed but
have been planned. The decrease is primarily due to the use of the prior year's balances associated with
encumbrances and carry forwards as well as the School of Medicine funding a major capital project from
departmental funds.

Funds functioning as endowments were created by the Board utilizing University resources. These funds
are invested in the endowment pool to achieve long-term growth. The funds consist of endowments for
scholarships, excellence in teaching and research, and deferred plant renewal. The increase was due to a
13.7% gain on endowment investments this year,

Giftis and investment income reserves include the University's unrestricted gifts, and realized and
unrealized investment income reserves, The increase was due to an 8.4% gain on working capital
investments this year,

Retirement and insurance reserves include the University's reserves and liakility recorded for OPEB. The
University follows GASB Statement No. 75, dccounting and Finanelal Reporting for Postemployment
Benefits Other Than Penslons. The actuarially determined liability at June 30, 2024 was $26.9 million.
The University has decided that future benefits will not be prefunded; however, the University has
designated assets to meet future obligations through the creation of a Board-approved, quasi-endowment
valued at approximately $33.1 million, eamings from which will be used to offset annual postemployment
contributions. The increase was primarily due to favorable returns in the endowment investmenits this year,
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The retirement and insurance balance also include reserves for unemployment and workers' compensation
for which the University is self-insured.

University Statemenis of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position

The University's revenues, expenses, and changes in net position are summarized in the following
Condensed Statements of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Met Position:

Condensed Stntements of Revemies, 22 e Change %5 Change
Expenses, and Changes In Med Position 2024 22 {ns restaied} 2024-2028 T033-F022
{im dircarrracs)
Chperating revemmes
Hel tition £ 197541 5 195,842 $ 157,548 1% 1%
Liramis and comirais T1E9T 20,800 14,797 14% 41%
Dieparimental activitics 10,313 18,193 18,457 12% -3
Auxiliary activithes, net 33,938 15,017 12,301 14 5
Oiiber {1 [ il 305 4 15%
Tatal apersting revenses 175,596 a0 263438 %% o 8
Ohperating expenses 364,475 343 442 AT1A2% % -3%
(perating Inss (%8570} {75,401 (107, %87) 18% -Jife
Monoperatimg revemwes (Expenses
Stnle appropriationd TIED &, T2 56,0098 1924 3
Gifs 50 1062 i &0 =£31% 4%
Investmend imcome, nel 42,242 26,340 {32,423} &% 131%
Inlerest eapenss {13.545) 113,4350) {14 828} 1% =i
Pell grants 13,100 19,343 20,324 19% 5%
Federal granis - - 48,313 (% = | P
Other A3 768 118 0% S48%
et momopembng revenues 130,335 1022 B4 403 9% 1%
[ecme (loss) hefiare other revenues 41,456 25421 {23,584} 1% 20R%
Capital approprintions 18,265 T.647 - 135% MiA
Capital grants and gifls 106 126 170 =16% -2i%e
Addditions ip permanent endowmaents 2,580 1,714 2.944 T1% =4 2%%
Total oiler revenes 21000 9487 1114 129% 205%
Imcrease (decrease) in net posidan 1,756 34,908 (200470 B 271 %
Met position
Beginning of year 615,120 SRO.312 600,782 6% -1%
End of year 3 677976 8 613,220 3 580,312 [ (%

Operating revenues were $275.6 million in 2024, $268.0 million in 2023, and $263.4 million in 2022, The
£7.6 million, or 3%, increase in 2024 over 2023 was largely due 1o a $2.9 million increase in grants and
contracts, $2. 1 million increase in Departmental activities, $1.7 million increase in Tuition, and $0.9 million
increase in Auxiliary activities. The $4.6 million, or 2%, increase in 2023 over 2022 was largely due lo a
%6.0 million increase in grants and contracts, and $0.7 million increase in Auxiliary activities. The increase
was offset by a $1.7 million decline in Net tuition revenue resulting from enrollment decreases astributable
to a decline in high school graduates from Michigan,
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In fiscal year 2024, the University earned $42.2 million in net investment income. This growth is comprised
of $24.7 million, an §.4% rate of return, in University pooled working capital investments and $17.5
million, a 13.7% rate of return, in the endowment invesimenis.

In fiscal year 2023, the University earned $26.3 million in net investment income, This growth is comprised
of $11.1 million, a 3.6% rate of return, in University pooled working capital investments and 515.2 million,
a 13.7% rate of return, in the endowment investments,

Operating expenses were $364.5 million in 2024, $343.4 million in 2023, and $371.5 million in 2022. The
operating expense increase of 6% in 2024 over 2023 primarily resulted from increases in instrection,
research, academic support, student services, and institutional support attributable to rising costs during an
inflationary period. The operating expense decrease of 8% in 2023 over 2022 primarily resulted from a
decrease in student aid attributable to the 2022 distribution of Higher Education Emergency Relief Funds
{HEERF) earmarked for direct student suppart. Additional decreases in instruction, academic support, and
institutional support are attributable to the implementation of cost containment measures during a period of
declining enrollment. A breakdown of the University’s operating expenses by functional classification
Follows:

University Operating Expenses
mi % Change % Change
2024 0Ty {as restabed) I024-2023 T023-1022
fim thaierad)
Edwcation and general

Instruction 5 131,360 5 128,503 § 132,865 Fx ] 3%
Research 18400 14.68R 12484 25% 8%
Public service 3676 34 373 1% =1%
Academic suppor 3052 48,754 53,908 T -10%
Student services 6 ATH 33,781 H2Th 0 =%
Inztiulional suppor 24907 23,700 2155 5% A%

Operations and maintenance of
plant 23,500 22,491 23343 5% 1%
Depreciation and smortization Ar412 agan 27.540 15% 2%
Sisdent aid 8495 14657 27031 1% “Ti%
Total education and peneral R 11531 340,101 % R
Awxiliary activities 32,785 31911 3120 k] 2%
Total opemting expensss 5 364,475 5343442 §371.425 %% B

Total education and general expenses increased 6% in 2024 over 2023 and decreased 8% in 2023 over
2022. The increase in 2024 was mainly attributable to compensation increases to maintain competitive
salaries in an inflationary market coupled with the rising costs of travel and purchase of supplies and
services.

Instruction for 2024 increased $2.9 million primarily the result of compensation increases to maintain
competitive salarics in an inflationary market. Additional increases in Research of $3.7 million; Academic
support of $3.3 million; Student services of $3.1 million; and Institutional support of $1.2 million are largely
due 1o increases in compensation, the cost of travel, and purchased supplies. Student aid increased $0.8
million in 2024 due to the University's increased funding of financial aid.

Instruction for 2023 decreased $4.4 million as a result of cost containment measures during a period of
declining enrollment. Additional decreases in Academic support of §5.2 million; and Institutional support
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of $2.2 million are largely due to a cost containment measures, including reductions in staffing, decreases
in travel, and supplies. Student aid decreased $19.3 million in 2023 primarily due to the 2022 distribution
of HEERF funds earmarked for direct studemt suppon.

The University’s operating loss was $88.9 million in 2024, $75.4 million in 2023, and 5108.0 million in
2022, (ffsetting these losses were net nonoperating revenues of $130.3 million in 2024, $100.8 million in
2023, and $84.4 million in 2022.

Nonoperating revenue is largely comprised of State appropriations and, as reflected in the State’s approved
appropriations bills, was $72.3 million in 2024, 360.8 million in 2023, and $56.1 million in 2022. The
increase over 2023 is due to a Fiscal Year Equated Student (FYES) funding foor supplemental
appropriation of $8.1 million included as part of the 2023-2024 State of Michigan budget bill. This is a
direct result of the University's “Strive for 457 campaign to get a minimum appropriation of $4,500 per
cach FYES.

MNonoperating revenues also include $23.1 million from Federal Pell Grants in 2024. Pell Grant revenue for
2023 and 2022 was 5$19.3 million and $20.3 million, respectively,

Other revenues primarily consist of $18.3 million in capital appropriations from the State Building
Authority for the completion of South Foundation Hall and $3.0 million of permanent endowments and
capital grants and gifts.

Net position increased $62.8 million in 2024 and is primarily attributed to nonoperating activities including
$£42.2 million of investment income, $11.5 million increase in state appropriations, and $10.6 million
increase in capital appropriations,

MNet position increased $34.9 million during 2023 and is primarily attributed to nonoperating activities
including $26.3 million of investment income, $7.6 million of capital appropriations, $4.7 million increase
in state appropriations, and $1.7 million of additions to permanent endowments. This increase was offset
by a $1.7 million decling in tuition revenue.

Net position decreased $20.5 million during 2022 and is primarily attributed to a $32.4 million investment
loss, a $10.5 million decline in tuition revenue, a $9.8 million increase in scholarship allowances, a $6.1
million decline in additions to permanent endowments, a $4.5 million increase in student services provided,
a $3.6 million increase in academic support, and a $3.8 million decline in capital gifis. The decrease was
offset by $48.3 million in federal grants and a $2.1 million one-fime operational support payment provided
by the State of Michigan as part of the 2022 state appropriations.
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A graphic illustration of cach revenue source is as follows:

Revenue Sources

I.-L-JF

Sualazrn S Opsrating Apoaliary Grants and Departmental G, Capstal |H'l'E!-'|r"l'H'|:
Approprivicnd AE s Conbracts activities  ApprogriEtions,
ared Other

207500 4
187,500
167.500 4
147,500 -
127,500
107,500 4
87,500
62500
47,500

5im

7,500
-12.500 -
«32,500

w2022 w2023 @204

University Statements of Cash Flows
The University”s cash flows are summarizad in the following Condensed Statemenis of Cash Flows:

Condensed Statements of Cash Flows

2022
2024 2023 (a5 restated)
{irt thonesands)

Cash from
Operating activities % (65,307) % (44,626) £ (T0,201)
Moncapital financing activities 102,604 87,909 133,705
Capital financing activitics (62,398) (96, 438) (T9.345)
Investing activities i 5,604) 4 L6 9,494

Met change in cash and cash equivalents (30,705) (46,739) {E H".f:l
Cash and cash equivalenis
Beginning of vear 79,080 125,819 132,166
End of year $ 48,375 § 79,080 § 125,819
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The primary cash receipts from operating activities consist of tuition, auxiliary activities, and grant and
contract revenues. Cash disbursements primarily include salaries and wages, benefits, supplies, utilities,
and scholarships. The decrease in net cash from operating activities is primarily the result of increased
accounts receivable balances for departmental activities and increased payments to employees in 2024,

MNoncapital financing activities include State appropriation cash receipts of $70.2 million in 2024, $59.5
million in 2023, and $56.0 million in 2022; Pell Grants totaling $23.1 million in 2024, $19.3 million in
2023, and $20.3 million in 2022; Federal HEERF grants totaling $49.8 million in 2022; and gift cash
receipts of 9.2 million in 2024, $8.4 million in 2023, and $9.0 million in 2022,

Capital financing activities for 2024 include the issuance of the 2024 A Bonds for $18.8 million with a $2.0
million premium, capital expenditures of $52.8 million and debt service payments in the amount of $52.9
millien including $20.4 million for the refunding of the 2014 Bonds. Cash disbursements for capital
expenditures in 2024 included $19.1 million for the South Foundation Hall expansion; 37.8 million for
West Center renovations; $7.9 million for the School of Medicine renovation and expansion; $5.7 million
in Varner Hall renovations; $1.8 million for the Meadow Brook Hall Visitor Center; $1.0 million for
improvements to the Recreation Center; $0.9 million for Golf Course improvements, %2.9 million and Si.1
million in equipment and library books respectively; and $5.6 million in various infrastructure and building
improvements and repairs.

Capital financing activities for 2023 include the issuance of the 20228 Bonds for $44.8 million with a $4.7
million premium, the refunding of the 2013A Bonds for $48.2 millien, capital expenditures of $70.8 million
and debt service payments in the amount of $28.0 million. Cash disbursements for capital expenditures in
2023 included $21.8 million in Varner Hall renovations; $17.8 million for South Foundation Hall
expansion; $9.4 million for West Center; $7.9 million in Research Facility renovations; $4.0 million for
Wilson Hall expansion and parking lot; $4.7 million and $0.1 million in equipment and library books
respectively; and $5.1 million in various infrastructure and building improvements and repairs,

Capital financing activities for 2022 include the issuance of the 2022A Bonds for $32. 1 million with a $5.3
million premium, the refunding of the 2012 Bonds for $36.8 million, capital expenditures of $49.4 million
and debt service payments in the amount of $30.6 million, Cash disbursements for capital expenditures in
2022 included $15.1 million in Vamer Hall renovations; $12.3 million for Wilson Hall building expansion;
%7.3 million in Research Facility renovations; $2.2 million in high temperature hot water energy savings
projects; $0.8 million for South Foundation Hall expansion; $0.8 million for Sharf Patio expansion; §5.3
million and $0.1 million in equipment and library books respectively; and $5.5 million in various
infrastructure and building improvements and repairs.

Cash from investing activities is due to the timing variations of purchases, sales, and investment income.

Commitments

The estimaied costs to complete construction projects in progress is $31.7 million as of June 30, 2024, due
in large part to the construction costs associated with the renovation of West Center for $11.1 million,
improvements to O Dowd Hall, Dodge Hall, and Kresge Library in the amount of 32.3 million, Meadow
Brook Hall Visitor Center for $2.7 million, Science Complex renovation for $2.5 million, South Foundation
Hall renovation in the amount of $1.7 million, Human Health Building improvements of $1.3 million, and
various campus enhancement projects totaling an additional $9.6 million. The Seuth Foundation Hall
project is funded from the State Capital Outlay for $30.0 million, $10.0 million from the 2019 Bonds, and
$4.2 million from University resources. The various other construction projects are funded from University
PESQUNCES.
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University Credit Rating L
On March 29, 2024, Moody's Investors Service reaffinned the University's underlying credit rating as
Al - Stable,

Deferred Plant Renewal

The University annually surveys campus to identify deferred plant renewal, adding new items and deleting
items that were addressed during the year, Each year, general revenues are allocated to address deferred
plant renewal items. In addition, the University has established a quasi-endowment that provides
investment earnings that are used to address deferred plant renewal needs,

Factors or Conditions Impacting Future Periods

Financial and budget planning is directly related to and supportive of the University’s mission, strategic
plan, and operational needs. The ability to plan effectively is influenced by an understanding of the
following factors which impact the University's finances:

Enrollment management

Demographics, including number of high school graduates
Stability of State appropriations (including floor funding)
Increased globalization and mobilization of student population
Mew program growth and development

Mew and emergent technologies

Productivity improvemenis

Inflationary and supply chain pressures

Alternative sources of revenwe

" ® ®F ® @ & ® & @
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1024 2023
Amvels
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents (Mote ) 5 45,830,085 67.217.188
Accounts recetvable, net (Beote 3) 19,332,190 15626109
Lemses receividhle (Mote 4] 544 351 442 342
Appropriations receivable (MNate 5) 13,143,414 11047616
Pledges receivable, net (Mote 6) 915,971 1,223,004
Inventories 15RO, 1 654,149
Dreposits and prepaid expenses 4,724,685 4,964 882
Studem loans receivahble, net (MNale 7) 130,981 309,987
Total currem assets 96,291,702 103455287
Moncurrent assels
Resiricted cash and cash equivalents (Mot 2) 1,544 EHG 11863267
Endowimenl invesiments (Beote 1) 151,474,929 1 36,683,871
{kher long-term vestments {Mate 2) 131,049,817 198,994,585
Leases receivable (Mote 4) 1,626,315 1.903,091
Pledges receivable, net (Mole 6) i, 544,009 1,757,140
Student ksans reccivable, net (Mote T) 640,538 45051
Bencficial interest in assets held by others (Mote 16) 5,084,157 4,658,503
Capital assets, net (Maote %) GRE,477,503 667,594,545
Drber assets {Mote 1) 643,058 617,981
Taotal noncurrenl assets 1,082,245, T 1,024.774.126
Total assets |1I15‘_!'?T14N 1127260413
Deferred autlows af resouress (Mote 12) 7,237,766 7,700,370
Liakilities
Current |iabititics
Accaunts pavable and sccrued expenses 31,243,633 35132337
Acerued payroll 13,645,545 12,964,802
Long-term Habilities - current postion (Nate 13) 19,210,291 21,875.263
{her postemplovment beneflis - current portion (Mode 14} 1,445,512 1.617.974
Unenmed revenise 19,7474 21,704 467
i 4,196,205 4,345 B34
Total curreni lishilities 99,4010, I8 4, fickd, 87
Moncurrend liahililies
Uncamed revenae 4,850,042 5,219,821
Drerivative instruments - swap lisbility (Mote B) LRI L I35 R4
Long-term Habilities (Mote 13) 151,035,534 368 812 840
(Hher postemployment benefits (Mate 14) 15,408,743 27,334,065
Totnl nemeurrent finhilifies JR1955414 402427472
Total |ksbiliies AR1 45404 497 072350
Deferred inflows of resources (Nobe 16) 26,300 602 22 677 807
Met position
Med investment in capital assels 319.198,135 2HE 130827
Restricted:
Monexpendable 51,841,068 49,523,092
Experulahbe:
Research and gifts 40,228 40 41,212,001
Criasi and term endowmenis 30,994 358 25,115,278
Dieht zervice and capital projects 1,255,722 324,250
Student loans 1a4257 2R20EY
Unreairicted 133024.128 210,010,071
Tozal net position 5 iT?I'J'IﬁEH 615219617

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

1]



DRAFT

Oakland University
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4 023
Operating reven e
Tuithon (met of scholarship albewvances of
556,808,279 in 2024 and 561,750,125 in 20233 £ 197,541,243 § 195,841 829
Fedemal grants and conlricts 16,272,853 13100, 385
State, local, and private grants and contracls TAI19.553 1700 403
Departmeental sctivities 10322981 18,193,052
Auxiliary activities (net of scholarship allowances of
85,612,620 in 2024 and 55,100,719 in 2023) 31087 401 33,006,844
Criber operaling revenues 101,573 198,938
Total operating revenucs 175595 4 26E1 A5
Operiting expenses
Echscation and gemeral
Instrsction 131,359,546 128 502,650
Research 18,409,223 14,687, 865
Prublic service 3,676,158 3,704,208
Academic support 51,051,660 48,754,332
Snudent services 3o, 869, T4 33781233
Instisbonal support 24,906,659 23,700,468
Diperations and mainenance of plam 13,508,902 21.491,183
Deprecintion 3L A12,658 g2 178
Student aid 8,494, 686 TAET, 190
Auxilinry activities 31,785 341 I.%00.107
Total operating expenses {Mote 19) M 474,538 343442414
Oiperaring loss {85, 878.634) (75,400, 9%60)
Mompperating revenses (expenies)
State appropriations (Mobe 5) T, 288, RO G0, Ta 1,500
Giifls £ 406,362 7,061,008
Investment income (pel of investiment expenses of
$713,426 in 2024 ardd $582,658 in 2023) 41,242,144 26,339,428
Inferest on capifal asset related debt {13,545,235) (13449 645}
Pell gramns 11,0705 585 19,343,439
(hser B3 303 Ti5,234
Mt nonoperaling revenues 130,335 348 100,822 264
Income before other revemies 41 456,714 25,421,304
f_'u.piul apprnpri.iinh:l 18,264,737 7646, 445
Capital grants and gifis 105,547 126,337
Aulditions o permanent endowments 1,919,459 1,713,662
Tatal ather revenuss 21,299,743 9.4 86,444
Increase in nel position 62,756,457 34,907, Tof
Met position
Beginning of vear 615219617 580,311,849
End of year 5  6T1976,074 i B8 219617

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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2024 2023
Cash Mows (rom aperating activities
Tuition 5 IHEAASSAWY £ 1950143 042
Cirants and contracis 28,363,049 24,936,393
Payments to supplicrs (76,8%1 07k (T 1 76,555)
Paymenis o employess (245,947,1.34) {236,547, 700
Peymenis for scholasships and fellowships (8,494 684) {7687, 1940)
Loans issued 1o sudents (2 300y {198,880}
Collection of koans from students ASI.038 214,629
Federal direct lending receipis H1,%900,172 83,000,741
Federal direet lending disbursements (81,900,172} (B3,090,741)
Auxilinry enterprise charges 35970570 JZR12A50
Cither receipis 19,584,214 25,167,773
Met cash firom opamting nctivities (Mote 20 (65,306, 242 {44,625 B90)
Cash Nows from noncapital fnancing activities
Sante appropriations T, 193,002 59,534 BO%
Gifis amd gromis for odher than capital punposes 29,109,370 26,336,595
Endowment gifts 3,301,848 2037 09%
et cash from noncapital financing activities 102,604,220 7,508,872
Cnsh Aows From capital nancing aclivities
Proceeds from capiial debt 20,801,716 49,538,250
Capiial appropeiations 21,718 213 437624
Froceeds from leases TEO, M 626,491
Purchases of capital assets (52,760,429) {70,831,532)
Principal paid on capital debsd {36,252,158) {58,661, 705)
Imicrest paid on capital debi {16,636 802} {17,546, 946)
Mel ensh frodm capital fsancing activithes {62,398, 716) {06,437, 760)
Cash Mows rom investing activities
Froceeds from sales and malurities of investments 24,398,611 B R5 53T
Invesiment income T R4 652 21 276,180
Purchase of investments (107,867, 420) {21,945.826)
et cash from investing activities (5,604, 146) a4 15900
HNet change in cash and cash eguivalents (20,705 4545 {46, T30 BRT)
Cagh and cash equivalents
Beginning of vear THO080,455 125,819,342
End of year 5 48374971 % TGIHI}JH

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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1. Drganization, Basis of Presentation, and Significant Accounting Policies

Organization

Oakland University (Liniversity) is an institution of higher education and is considered o be a
component unit of the State of Michigan (State). [ts Board of Trustees (Board) is appointed by the
Governor of the State. Accordingly, the University is included in the State’s financial statements as
a discretely presented component unit. Transactions with the State relate primarily to appropriations
for operations, capital improvements and grants from various Federal and State agencies.

Basis of Presentation

The accompanying financial stalements have been prepared using the economic resource
measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. The statements incorporate all fund groups
utilized intermally by the University. These statements have been prepared in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (LS, GAAP) as prescribed
by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB).

The University follows the “business-type” activities requirements of GASEB Statement Mo, 34, Basic
Finarncial Statements-and Management 5 Discussion and Analysizs-for Sfare and Local Governnenis,
and GASE Statement Mo, 35, Basic Financial Statements-and Management's Discussion and
Analysis-for Public Colleges and Universities. These statements require the following components
of the University s financial stalements:

»  Management’s Discussion and Analysis

»  Statements of Net Position, Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position,
and Statements of Cazh Flows

&  Maotes to the financial statements

GASB Statements No. 34 and 35 establish standards for external financial reperting for public
colleges and universities and require that resources be classified for accounting and reporting
purposes into the following four net asset categories:

» Net investment in capital assets: Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation and
outstanding principal balances of debt attributable to the acquisition, construction or
improvement of those assets.

#  Restricted:
Nonexpendable — Met position subject to extemally imposed constraints which
permanently restrict the University from expending such assets. Such assets include the
University”s permanent endowment funds,

Expendable — Met position where use by the University is subject to externally imposed

constraints that can be fulfilled by actions of the University pursuant to those constraints
or that expire by the passage of time,
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1. Organization, Basis of Presentation, and Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

»  Unrestricted: Net position that is not subject to externally imposed constraints. Unrestricted
net position may be designated for specific purposes by action of management or the Board
or may otherwise be limited by contractual agreements with outside parties. Substantially
all of the unrestricted net position is designated for academic, research, and outreach
programs and initiatives, postemployment benefits, operating and stabilization reserves,
capital projects and capital asset renewals, and replacements,

GASE Statements No. 34 and 35 also require the University to report revenues net of discounts and
allowances, Gift and grant revenues are recognized at the later of the pledge date or when the
eligibility requirement of the gifts and grants are met.

Significant Aecounting Policies

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The University considers all investments with an original maturity of 90 days or less when purchased
to be cash equivalents. Restricted cash and cash equivalents consist of unexpended bond proceeds
which are restricted for use as noted in the bond documents,

Cash Flow Reporiing
For the purpose of presentation in the Statemenis of Cash Flows, cash and cash equivalents includes
restricted cash.

Investments
Inwvestments are stated at fair value,

Inveniories
Inventories are stated at actual cost. The inventory as of June 30, 2024 and 2023 includes five homes
in the Meadow Brook Subdivision owned by the University valued at $1.061,500.

Physical Properties

Physical properties are stated at cost or, if acquired by gift, at acquired value at the date of acquisition.
A capitalization threshold of 55,000 is used for equipment. In addition, all equipment under a umit
cost of $5,000 purchased in bulk for a newly constructed building is capitalized and depreciated over
seven years. Depreciation is compaited using the straight-line method ower the estimated useful life
of the property. When asscts are retired or otherwise disposed of, the cost and related accumulated
depreciation are removed from the accounts. The costs of maintenance and repairs are expended as
incurred. The University does not capitalize certain works of art or historical treasures that are held
for exhibition, education, research, or public service. The following are asset classifications and the
respective estimated useful lives:

Classifications Life

Buildings 40 years
Land improvements and infrastrocture 20 years
Library acquisitions 10 years
Equipment and software 7 years
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1. Organization, Basis of Presentation, and Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Deferred ODuillows of Hesonrces

The Statements of Met Position include a separate section for deferred outflows of resources. This
separate financial statement element represents a consumption of et position that applies to a future
period and will not be recognized as an expense until then. Deferred outflows of resources consist
of differences between expected and actual experiences in the OPEB valuation in addition to
contributions remitted 1o the University's retiree health care plan afler the measurement date of the
plan, interest rate swap accumulated change in fair value, and the deferral of the swap termination
cost for the 2001 Bonds.

Unearned Revenue
Unearmed revenue consists primarily of summer semester tuition not earned during the current year
and contractual advances.

Deferred Inflows of Resources

The Statements of Met Position include & separate section for deferred inflows of resources, This
separate financial statement element represents an acquisition of net pesition that applies to a future
period and will not be recognized as revenue until then. Deferred inflows of resources consist of
other postemploymeant benefit {OPEB) assumption changes, beneficial interest in assets held by
others, split interest agreements, deferred amortization on refunding of debt, and leasing
arrangements.

Revenue Recognition

Owperating revenues represent revenue eamed from exchange transactions and consist of tuition,
certain grants and contracts, departmental activities, auxiliary activities, and other miscellaneous
revenues, Monoperating revenues include State appropriations, gifts, certain grants, and investment
income, When an expense is incurred for which both restricted and unrestricted net position are
available, the University applies the restricted or unrestricted resources al its discretion.

Tuition revenue related o the summer semester is recognized in the fiscal year in which the semester
is conducted.

Scholarship allowance is the difference between the stated charge for tuition and the amount paid by
the student or third parties making payments on behalf of the student. Student financial aid such as
fiee waivers, Pell grants, and scholarship awards are considered to be scholarship allowances if used
to pay tuition and room and board. These allowances are netted against tuition and auxiliary revenues
in the Statements of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position.

Funds are appropriated io the University for operations by the State covering the State’s fiscal year,
October 1 through September 30, The appropriation is for the University's fiscal year ending June 30
and is considered camed when appropriated,

Bond Issuance Costs
Bond issuance costs are expensed when incorred,
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1.  Organization, Basis of Presentation, and Significant Accounting Policies {continued)

Income Tax Status

The University is classified as a political subdivision of the State of Michigan under Section 115 of
the Internal Revenue Code and is therefore exempt from federal income taxes, Certain activities of
the University may be subject to taxation as unrelated business income,

Use of Estimates

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions
that affect amounts reported in the financial statements and the accompanying notes. Actual results
could differ from those estimates.

Upcoming Accounting Pronsuncements

In April 2024, the GASB issued Statement No. 103, Fimancial Reporting Model Improvements, o
improve key components of the financial reporting model to enhance its effectiveness in providing
information that is essential for decision making and assessing accountability. This Statement
continues the requirement that the basic financial statements be preceded by management’s
discussion and analysis (MD&A) enhanced with detailed analyses that explains why balances and
results of operations changed rather than simply presenting the amounts or percentages by which
they changed. Additionally, this Statement requires additional disclosures and discussion of unusual
or infrequent items, changes in the presentation of the statement of revenues, expenses, and changes
in net position, major component unit information, budgetary comparison information, and financial
trends information in the statistical section. The University is currently evaluating the impact this
standard will have on the financial statements when adopted. The provisions of this statement are
effective for the University's financial statements for the year ending June 30, 2026.

In December 2023, the GASE issued Statement No. 102, Certain Bisk Disclosures, 1o provide users
of government financial ststements with essential information about risks related to vulnerabilities
due to certain concentrations or constraints, As a result, an assessment will be required to determine
whether a concentration or constraint makes the primary reporting unit or other reporting units that
report a liability for revenue debt vulnerable to the risk of a substantial impact. Additionally, this
Statement requires a government to assess whether an event or events associated with a concentration
or constraint that could cause the substantial impact have occurred, have begun to o¢cur, or are more
likely than not to begin to occur within 12 months of the date the financial statements are issued, If
eriteria for disclosure have been met for a concentration or constraint, it should disclose information
in notes to financial statements in sufficlent detail to enable users of financial statements 1o
understand the nature of the circumstances disclosed and the vulnerability to the risk of a substantial
impact, The University is currently evaluating the impact this standard will have on the financial
statements when adopted, The provisions of this statement are effective for the University’s financial
statements for the vear ending June 30, 20235,

In June 2022, the GASB issued Statement Mo. 101, Compensated Absences, which replaces GASH
16, Accounting Compensated Absences to create a more consistent model for accounting for
compensated absences that can be applied 1o all types of compensated absence arrangements, This
Statement requires that labilities for compensated absences be recognized for (1) leave that has not
been used and (2} leave that has been used bat not yel paid in cash or settled through noncash means.
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1. Organization, Basis of Presentation, and Significant Accounting Policies {continued)

A liability should be recognized for leave that has not been used if (a) the leave is attributable to
services already rendered, (b) the leave accumulates, and (c) the leave is more likely than not to be
used for time off or otherwise paid in cash or setiled through noncash means. The University is
currently evaluating the impact this standard will have on the financial statements when adopted.
The provisions of this statement are effective for the University’s financial statements for the year
ending June M), 2025,

Adoption of New Standards

During the year ended June 30, 2024, the University adopted GASB Statement No. 100, Accounting
Changes and Error Corrections to enhance accounting and financial reporting requirements for
accounting changes and error corrections to provide more understandable, reliable, relevant,
consistent, and comparable information for making decisions or assessing sccountability, This
Statement prescribes the accounting and financial reporting for each type of accounting change and
error corrections. This Statement requires that (a) changes in accounting principles and error
corrections be reported retroactively by restating prior periods, (b) changes to or within the financial
reporting entity be reported by adjusting beginning balances of the current period, and (c) changes
in accounting estimates be reported prospectively by recognizing the change in the current period.
The requirements of this Statement for changes in accounting principles apply to the implementation
of 2 new pronouncement in absence of specific transition provisions in the new pronouncement, This
Statement also requires that the aggregate amount of adjustments to and restatements of beginning
net position, fund balance, or fund net position, as applicable, be displayed by reporting unit in the
financial statements. The adoption of this guidance by the University did not have a material impact
on the Minancial statements.

During the year ended June 30, 2023, the University adopted GASB issued Statement No, 94, Public-
Private and Public-Public Partnerships and Availability Payment Arrangements, to bring a uniform
guidance on how 1o report public-private and public-public partnership armangements. As a result,
transferors in public-private or public-public arrangements will recognize receivables for installment
payments, deferred inflows of resources, and, when applicable, capital assets, Operators will
recognize liabilities for installment payments and intangible right-to-use assets, and when applicable,
deferred outflows of resources and liabilities for assets being transferred. This statement also
provides guidance for accounting and financial reporting for availability payment arrangements, in
which a government compensates an operator for services such as designing, constructing, financing,
maintaining, or operating an underlving asset for a period of time in an exchange or exchange-like
transaction. The adoption of this guidance by the University did not have a material impact on the
financial statements.

During the year ended June 30, 2023, the University adopted GASB Statement No. 96, Subscription-
Based Information Technology Arrangements (SBITAs), which defines SBITAs and provides
accounting and financial reporting for SBITAs by governments. As a result, the University now
includes a subscription liability and an intangible righi-to-use subscription asset for SBITAs.
Subscription activity is further described in Note 13.
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2.

Investments and Deposits with Financial Institutions

Operating cash is pooled into investments and deposits, which are uninsured and uncollateralized.
This pool is administered according to the University’s “Working Capital Management and
Investment Policy.” The University's working capital is divided into three investment groups: short-
term, intermediate-term, and long-term investments. Shori-term investments are immediately
available for use and have an average maturity of one year or less. Intermediate-term investments
are liquid within five business days or less and have an average maturity of no more than five years.
Long-term investiments are liquid within 20 business days or less and have average maturities over
five years. The long-term investment asset class is limited to 30% of the ol investment pool and
includes equities. All investment classes are rated investment grade or better by at least one rating

AEENCY.

The working capital at June 30, 2024 does not involve any conceniration of credit risk as investments
in any one entity, except the United States Government or its agencies, may not exceed 5% of the
total investment pool. For non-amortizing securities, the maturity of any single debt instrument shall
not exceed 15 years, MNo more than 50% of equity and bond investments are assigned to a single
invesiment manager,
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r Investments and Deposits with Financial Institations {(continmed)

The University's working capital consists of the following as of June 30, 2024 and 2023:

Imvestment Muaturities (In Yesrs)
Fale Mirkel
June 30, 1924 ¥alue =] Yiar I -5 yrars 610 years >80 years BiA
Umiverably Working Cagétal
‘Cash and Cash Equiralents 5 45,RM085 F A55300R5 5 - 5 - % - 3§
Coeramon fund
Intersnsdiare Roesd Fioml 63012472 J0TLORT LI 1347390 350,903
High Chaality Bond Fund 501,504,632 1,7, 450 Ui, 6854 26 FrAREE T 086, M
Comtingenl Adsel Panliaho 50,168,151 1ETTOR 24,574,701 fi ST T 4500 533 -
Core Eguaty Fand 14, 776.5%0 . . = £ IR, 76T
Egquity Index Fund 29, 5E2 444 . 5 2 = 39,382 044
Fadelity T3 84R - - - T1.548
Cash waih Trastees L5 ARG 1544880 - = . .
Operaling investments SIMAMTRR 5 671400 SOA TSN 5 NI0B6A9)  SWARATHH 5 BE3TE 56D
As Reporied aa the Statensend of MNel Positien
Cash and caahy equivilenti 5 45E31,085
Restricied cash and cush
i vadents LA REG
{her kong-term imvestments AL RALT
& 380414, 78
Inveddmenl Malaricies (In Vears)
Fabr Marker
June 30, 2023 Valus =] Vear 1-5 vewrs -1 years > years M
Tniversity Waorking Capital
Casdy ancd Cash Equivalents § 67207.18E L e d - ] = ¥ - & = %
Commonfimd
Intermediate Bond Fund 54,794,701 B51L M5 43,857,951 1,954, 550 41080
Hisgh Crmality Bond Puond 39,330,768 15474633 I1,E10.030 6, B33 569 2036557
Continger Assed Portfolio 10 ER] WY 14,321,624 17,954,755 5017155 1548455 -
Core Equity Fund 25,137 1% = - . - 15,137,1M
Slrale g Fopaty Furul 30,723,065 . . . . 19,718 065
Fidelaty 120,798 . . - 121,798
Cash vwith Trusiess 11,861, 267 |1 B61 26T - -

{perating invesimenis STROTE M0 5 I0BARI 260 B VI661 5B 523,45 SE2095987 5 64597030

As Reporsed on the Sintement of Nel Position
Cshy mndl cash equivalents £ 67207, 1BE

Restncied cash and caals
equivalents 11,853,267
CHher fong-term mesimmiz 196,55, 3RS

£ 270078 Dbl
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2. Investmenis and Deposits with Financial Institutions (continued)

Investment duration describes the level of interest rate risk in the portfolio. Changes in interest rates
over time can impact the market value of the fixed income portion of the portfolie, At June 30, 2024,
the Commonfund Intermediate Term Bond Fund had a duration of 2 years and an average credit
quality of AA. The Commonfund Contingent Asset Portfolio had a duration of 1.6 years and an
average credit quality of AA+. The Commonfund High Quality Bond Fund had a duration of 6.3
years and average credit quality of AA-. At June 30, 2023, the Commonfund Intermediate Term
Bond Fund had a duration of 2 years and an average credit quality of AA. The Commonfund
Contingent Asset Portfolio had a duration of 1.8 years and an average credit quality of AA. The
Commonfund High Quality Bond fund had a duration of 6.7 years and an average credit quality of
AA-

For deposits, custodial credit risk is present if the deposits are not covered by depository insurance
and are 1} uncollateralized; 2) collateralized with securities held by the pledging financial institution;
or 3) collmeralized with securities held by the pledging financial institution’s trust department or
agent baut not in the University's name. The carrying amount of deposits, excluding investments
classified as cash equivalents, was $19,358,619 at June 30, 2024 and $42,031,237 at June 30, 2023.
The deposits were reflected in the accounts of the banks at $23,005,201 at June 30, 2024 and
£44,150,738 at June 30, 2023, OF the bank balance, $22,690,619 at June 30, 2024 and $43,724, 085
at June 30, 2023 was uninsured and uncollateralized.

As of June 30, 2024 and June 30, 2023, the University's working capital is not exposed to foreign
currency risk.

These working capital funds produced net rate of retum of 8.4% and 3.6% for the years ended June
30, 2024 and 2023, respectively.

The University's endowment investments are administered according to the University's
“Endowment Management and Investment Policy.” The investment policy seeks to diversify
investments among asset classes 1o provide a strategic asset allocation that enhances total returns and
avoids undue credit risk exposure in any single asset class or investment category. The “Endowment
Management and Investment Policy” restricts fixed income investments to “high guality” (primarily
A 1o AAA rated) corporate bonds, U.S. Treasury, and agency securities or issues of supranational
organizations and foreign sovereigns and no more than 20% of the fixed income portfolio may be
invested in securities rated less than BBB or that are illiquid.

These endowment investment funds are uninsured and uncollateralized and produced a total net
return of 13.7% for the years ended June 30, 2024 and 2023.
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Investments and Deposits with Financial Institutions {continwed)

University endowment funds consist of the following as of June 30, 2024 and 2023:

Inyeximsend Maiwrifies [In Vears)

June 30, 2004 Taotal <] Year 1% years e |0 vemrs =11 years MiA
L/AS Endowment Iavesiment Foal
Lange Cap Value 5 T4AR6,032 §F mo 5 - 5 - 5 - ST T4, 155
Large Cap Growth R LA - D374 - - Ee A5 A4l
M Cap Vb 6,749,173 d J : - £749,173
Bl Cap Lirenath 13,054 055 - - . 13,054,055
Small Cap Core ERTLE Ly . F i 2 £ 145,852
Emall Cap Growth 4,183,187 - - - 2 4302157
International Value 4.320,003 4,320,008
Internatseal Oroath 6833, 517 [N LR
Developmng Markets 5391643 - - . . 5301643
Fised lncase Cone 15295173 B4 REE 4061, 789 4,243,349 4, 2EE350 1,935.%38
Fined Incoese Mobml Fund B TRE . . - - 3,788,654
High Yizld Bondz TA35,162 5T 564 1,533 586 E13,545 120417 a
Hedge Furds 4030540 - - - - ERILERE]]
Private Equity 15710376 - - . 15710376
Miney Market Funds 45,131 44,131 s . = -
LIS ATLRI0 31,737,157 5 5595315 ""IEE“" 5 l&ﬂﬁ il]!v.HﬂEﬂ
Invesiment Maturitses {la Years)
Jume 30, 2023 -ra.._g_r =] Year 1-% wenrs fi=11 years =10 vears i
URS Esdowmsend Investmeni Posl
Large Cap Vaboe § 1311 %M § 500,715 5 5 - 1 $ 23,809,134
Large Cap Growth 34, 120950 271964 - 13 BEE S
Melid Cap: Value 5983008 - 5983 008
Ml L Gtk 11 RE55 562 - 11,859 542
Small Cap Core 8031375 - 1,031,375
Small Cap Growth FML e - - 3,743,151
Inbermational Value F RS T0E - A 3,854 TO8
Inbemational Growih 6,305 633 - - &, 3045 835
Developing Markets & BS0.429 - - “ . 4 B0 429
Fixed Incume Core 14, B9 207 ES2ET4 AT 0% p3 e AT 2545 ABE 1,647 249
Frxed Ineoie B utuad Fuead 5452638 - = " - 31,552,524
Hegh Yield Honds 2442307 166,971 1,334 508 TI5, 783 L0256 -
Hedge Funds 04T S x H 3 1047374
Private Equity 140, 5% 07 - 10, 500 5
Mhomey Marked Funds ExA 5918 L

L 16 5R1HT] 51 RS5ET 5 S053A

FESTZAM 5 JEISSHM  FLIOISOTTT

The fixed income investments within the Endowment pool have a fair market value of $21.6 million
as of June 30, 2024. The breakdown of market value, related percentage of the overall endowment
pool and associated credit quality for the fixed income investments is as follows: $0.5 million {0.3%)
rated AAA, $5.1 million (3.4%) rated AA+, $1.9 million (1.3%) rated AA-, $7.8 million {5.2%) rated
A-, 338 million {2.5%) rated BBB and $2.5 million (1.6%) rated BB, Money market funds carry

credit ratings of A-1, P-1, and F-1.
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The University is not exposed to foreign currency risk within the endowment investment balance as
of June 30, 2024,

The private equity investment's estimated fair value as measured by net asset value is $15,710,376
as of June 30, 2024, Hedge fund investments are estimated at a net asset value of 34,039,641 as of
Tune 30, 2024, As of June 30, 2023, the private equity investment’s estimated net asset value is
$10,599,070, Hedge fund investments are estimated at a net asset value of $3,047,274. Estimated net
assel values and returns are reviewed by the UBS Alternative Investments U.S. Team through the
University’s endowment investment adviser UBS Financial Services, Inc.

Fair value is most often determined by open market prices except for the private equity and hedge
funds. The estimated fair values are provided by external investment managers and advisers as of
June 30, 2024, Alternative invesimenis are not readily marketable; therefore, their estimated value
may differ from the value that would have been used had a ready market value for such investments
existed,

For donor resiricted endowments, the Uniform Prudent Management of Institutional Funds Act, as
adopted in Michigan, permits the University 1o appropriate an amount of realized and unrealized
endowment appreciation as determined to be prudent. The majority (90%) of the endowment
investment pool can be liquidated within 90 days or less at fair market value.

The University categorizes its fair value measurements within the fair value hierarchy established by
LL5. GAAP, The hierarchy is based on the valuation inputs used to measure the fair value of the
asset. Level 1 inputs are quoted prices in the active markets for identical assets; Level 2 inputs are
significant other observable inputs; Level 3 inputs are significant unohservable inputs that reflect a
company's own assessment about the assumptions that market participants would use in pricing an
asset o liability.

The fair value of various equity and debt securities held at June 30, 2024 and 2023 was determined
primarily on Level 2 inputs, The University estimates the fair value of these investments using other
inputs such as interest rates and yield curves that are observable at commonly quoted intervals.

The investment objective of the Core Equity Fund is to outperform its benchmark, the S&P 500
Index, over a full market cycle while managing risk through diversification of manager allocations.
The Core Equity Fund consists principally of investments where the emphasis is on companies that
the managers perceive fo have values not fully reflected in current market prices, This fund uses
Sub-Advisers who select stocks using quantitative and bottom-up fundamental analysis. The fund
will provide access to large capitalization and, to a lesser extent, mid-capitalization COMpanies,

The investment objective of the Equity Index Fund is replicating the performance of the S&P 300
Index Capitalization Weighted. The Equity Index Fund relies on a replication approach,
accumulating all the securities in the relevant index. Replication is subject to managed exceptions to
reduce transaction costs by avoiding odd lot purchases. Transactions are designated to be cost
effective and “nearly right™ without precisely replicating index weights.

28
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The investment objective of the High Quality Bond Fund is to outperform its benchmark, the
Bloomberg Barclays U. S, Aggregate Index, over a full market cycle while managing risk through
diversification of manager allocations. This fund will consist of investments that are chosen by
managers because of their emphasis on securities they believe to be of high credit quality and highly
liquid. The securities in the fund will consist primarily of LL.3. Treasury and Apency issues, corporate
bonds, mortgage bonds and other asset-backed securities.

Hedge funds in the Endowment portfolio wilize a diversified strategy approach by mixing managers
focused on Fund of Funds investments, fo managers focused on specific sectors, such as credit or
commodities, Within the Fund of Funds, the manager's investment intent is further marginalized
into event driven, opportunistic trading, as well as industry specific preferences.

Jeoled Prices in Significand
Apilve Markeis {hher Slgnificami
Fair Value a5 of for Identical khservalble Unohsrrvahble
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131,7H,m2 31, 724902 = -
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Ulnifunded Hedemplion Bedemption
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Core Bguity Fond 5 1214303 E Weeldy 5 Days
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Private Edquty 15710376 1,281 Mt A pplicaile Mot Applicable
Total Evestments meanred ol HAY e [ R ) 1,251,308
Tatil 3 E&Tﬂ £ 1,151,308
An Reparted on the Smiement of Net Position
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Investments and Deposits with Financial Institutions (continued)

Most of the funds align into the low velatility category with the objective to participate consistently
in up markets and provide favorable performance to the broader markets during depressed or down

market cycles.

Private Equity (PE) strategies in the Endowment portfolio are divided into five fund types, with
varying investment objectives. A Fund of Funds approach is utilized by one of the managers that
provides the University access to numerous PE investment deals in multiple industries. This strategy
provides built in diversification within this sector and helps mitigate downside exposure to the overall
PE asset class. The investment strategy for the remaining PE investments is to provide additional
layers of diversity to the pool. Specifically, these investments span markets or industries that cover
the aviation industry, technology and healthcare, and distressed debt opportunities.
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Accounis Receivable

Accounts receivable consist of the following as of June 30, 2024 and 2023:

224 2023

Tuition 5 6,501,024 ¥ 6,154,182
Auxiliary enterprises 1,211,600 GR0.629
Contracis and granis 5,245 860 [, 553,420
(hher receivables 19,641,298 9,613,675

Todal accounts receivable 32,599,782 18,701,915
Less: Allowance for doubtful accounts (3,267.592) (3,075, 806)

Teval accounts receivable, nat 529,332,190 £ 15.626,109

Leases Receivable

As prescribed in GASB 87, the University includes a receivable for the present value of payments
expected to be received and deferred inflows of resources that will be recognized as revenue over the
term of the lease. The University leases certain assets to various third parties. Payments are generally
fixed monthly with certain variable payments not included in the measurement of the lease
receivable, As of June 30, 2024 and 2023, the University had $2,370,667 and $2,355,433 in leases
receivable, respectively,

In January 20135, the University entered into a lease for its Sports Dome. Under the lease, the lessee
pays the University $30,519 monthly in exchange for operating its business within a 107,800 square
foot multipurpose domed athletic facility to provide youth and adult teams, leagues, clubs,
organizations, and individuals an area for indoor sports practices, sports camps and events, and
athletic performance training. The lease receivable is measured as the present value of the future
minimum rent payments expected to be received during the lease term at a discount rate of 3.67T0%.
In fiscal year 2024, the University recognized 53 14,156 im lease revenue and 72,715 of interest
revenue under the lease, As of June 30, 2024 and 2023, the University had $1.821,467 and
£2,114,980 in leases receivable, respectively for the Sports Dome,

In October 2014, the University entered into a lease for its Amphitheater, Under the lease, the lessee
pays the University $165,000 annually in exchange for operating its business within a certain area
on the University's campus that is commaonly known as the Amphitheater to provide a variety of live
entertainment attractions. The Amphitheater includes all of the University's buildings, fixtures,
furnishings, dedicated equipmens, grounds and parking areas contained thereon. The lease receivable
ks measured as the present value of the future minimum rent payments expected to be received during
the lease term at a discount rate of 3.67%. In fiscal vear 2024, the University recognized $134,621
in lease revenue and 56,171 of interest revenue under the lease, As of June 30, 2024 and 2023 the
University had $81.624 and $240,453 in leases reccivable, respectively for the Amphitheater.
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Leases Receivable (continned)

In July 2023, the University entered into a lease for its Meadow Brook Theatre. Under the kease, the
lessee pays the University $2,687.46 per production week with a minimum of 37 productions
annually in exchange for operating its business within the Meadow Brook Theatre auditorium and
related spaces to present theatre productions and operate the Meadow Brook Theatre as a local
producing house and as a member of the League of Resident Theatres, Fixed Rent will increase an
additional 2% at July | each Agreement Year thereafter. The lease receivable is measured as the
present value of the future minimum rent payments expected to be received during the lease term at
a discount rate of 3.57%. In fiscal year 2024, the University recognized $93,259 in lease revenue and
§8 498 of interest revenue under the lease. As of June 30, 2024, the University had $188,838 in leases
receivable fior the Meadow Brook Theaire,

In June 2023, the University entered into a lease for space to operate the Oakland University Gear
Shep, Under the lease, the lessee pays the University a capital investment expense of $35,000, a
signing bonus of $3,000 annually, scholarship contribution of $2,000 annually, and guarantced
cammissions of $70,000 annually in exchange for operating its business within a 10,000 square foot
space in the Oakland Center. The lease receivable is measured as the present value of the future
minimum rent payments expected to be received during the lease term ai a discount rate of 3.57%.
In fiscal year 2024, the University recognized $74.470 in lease revenue and $11,388 of interest
revenue under the lease. As of June 30, 2024, the University had $278,738 in leases receivable for
the Oakland University Gear Shop,

Variable payments received related to the University’s lease agreements during 2024 and 2023 were
not significant. The University does not have any significant agreements to lease assets from other
entities. Future principal and interest payment requirements related to the University's leases
receivable at June 30, 2024 are as follows:

Principal Interest Total

2025 $ 544,352 § 76,862 $£ 621,214
2026 480,818 58,871 539,689
2027 308,499 42,729 441,228
2023 413,296 27,932 441,228
2029 352,532 13,654 366,228
2030 181,170 1,944 183,114

Total £ 2370667 ¥ 222,034 § 2,592,701

Appropriations Receivable

In fiscal vear 2024, the annual State operating appropriation paid to the University was made in 11
monthly installments from October through August, as approved in the State of Michigan 2023-2024
Higher Education Appropriation Act totaling 572,288,800, Consistent with State of Michigan
legislation, the University accrued, as of the end of its fiscal year, the payments to be received in July
and August. As of June 30, 2024, the accrual of the July and August State operating appropriation
paymenis created an appropriation receivable of 513,143,414,
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5 Appropriations Receivable (continued)

Capital appropriation is paid to the University on & cost reimbursement basis for the renovation of
South Foundation Hall from the State Building Authority. The University incurred 518,264,737 of
reimbursable cost for the year ended June 30, 2024,

In fiscal year 2023, the annual State operating appropriation paid to the University was made in 11
monthly installments from October through August, as approved in the State of Michigan 2022-2023
Higher Education Appropriation Act totaling 360,761,900, Consistent with State of Michigan
legislation, the University accrued, as of the end of its fiscal year, the payments to be received in July
and August. As of June 30, 2023, the accrual of the July and August State operating appropriation
payments created an appropriation receivable of $11,047,616.

6. Pledges Receivable

Pledges receivable consist of the following as of June 30, 2024 and 2023:

2024 2023
Fledges ouisianding
Unrestricted 5 3,782 5 3,260
Restricted expendable 300,941 3,663,874
Total pledges outstanding 3,108,723 3,667,134
Less:
Allowance for doubtful pledges (310.871) (366,714)
Present value discount (337,781) (320,266)
Total pledges outstanding, net 2,460,070 2.980,154
Less: Currend portion, net (915.971) ;1,113]}”!
Moncurrent portion, net 5 1,544,099 & 1,757.140

Pledges receivable from donors are recorded at net present value less allowances for doubtiul
accounts. As of June 30, 2024 and 2023, the interest rate used to discount pledges to present value
was 5%. The aggregate allowance for doubtful accounts was 10%6 net of discount at June 30, 2024
and 2023. Payments on pledges receivable as of June 30, 2024 are expected to be received in the

following years:
Past due & 143,603
Due inone year 73,804
Due in two-five years 1,762,564
Thereafter 318,752

Tatal % sg_mm

Bequest intentions and other conditional promises are not recognized as assets until the specified
conditions are met because of uncertainties with regard to their reliability and valuation. As of
June 30, 2024, and 2023, the University had $37,372,857 and $34,521,188, respectively, in
conditional pledge commitments receivable not included in the accompanying financial statements.
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B

Student Loans Receivable

Student boans receivable consist of the following as of June 30, 2024 and 2023:

2024 2023
Student loans
Federal loan programs 5 644072 £ 5076
University loan funds 218447 214,962

BAZ,519 1,0 0038
Less: Allowance for doubtful loans {1, 00y 1,000

Total student loans, net B6l,519 1,059, 038

Lizss: Current portion, net (220,951) (309.987)
Moncurrent porion, net 5 640,538 £ 699051

In addition, the University distributed 81,900,172 and 383,091,741 for the years ended June 30,
20024 and 2023, respectively, for student loans through the U.S. Department of Education Federal
D¥irect Loan program. These distributions and related funding sources are not included as expenses
and revenues in the accompanying financial statements, but are reflected in the University's
Statements of Cash Flows,

The Perkins loan program expired on September 30, 2017, which ended the issuance of new loans
under this program, and disallowed any new disbursements after June 30, 2018, During the year
ended June 30, 2024, the University liquidated the Perkins loan program and assigned all outstanding
loans to the LS. Department of Education.

Hedging Derivative Instruments

The University follows the provisions of GASB No. 53, Adccouwnting and Financial Reporting for
Derivative fnstriments. The derivatives are valued using an independent pricing service. The
following provides a description of each swap agreement.

2008 Interest Rate Swap Agreement

In connection with the 2008 Bonds, the University enteresd into an interest rate hedging swap
agreement {2008 Swap) with Dexia Credit Local, New York Branch in an initial notional amount of
£53,280,000 effective June 13, 2008, the purpose of which is to synthetically fix interest rates on the
2008 Bonds. The agreement swaps the University's variable rate for a fixed rate of 3.37% and was
bazed on 67% of U.S. Dollar LIBOR. Effective July 1, 2023, the LIBOR rate was replaced with the
Secured Overnight Financing Rate (SOFR). The notional amount declines over time and terminates
March 1, 2031, The notional amount as of June 30, 2024 was $3 1,870,000, Under the 2008 Swap
agreement, the University pays a synthetic fixed rate of 3.37%. Mo amounts were paid or received
when the 2008 Swap was initiated.

The University is currently making payments under the 2008 Swap agreement, The estimated fair
value of the 2008 Swap as of June 30, 2024 and 2023 was ($658,095) and (§1,039,846), respectively.
These fair values are reflected as Derivative Instruments — swap liability on the Statements of Net
Position. The fair value of the hedging derivative instrument classified as Level 2 (significant other
ohservable inputs) at June 2024 and 2023 were valued based on 67% of US. Dollar SOFR. and
LIBOR respectively, and represenis the estimated amount that the University would pay to terminate
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8.

9.

Hedging Derivative Instruments (continued)

the 2008 Swap (termination risk), considering current interest rates and creditworthiness of the
underlying counterparty. In accordance with GASB No. 53, dccounting and Financial Reporting
for Derivative Insirumenis, the 2008 Swap is treated as an Effective Hedging Derivative Instrument.
The accumulated change in fair value is recorded as a deferred outflow of resources.

The University is exposed to credit risk, which is the risk that the counterparty will not fulfill its
obligations. The 2008 Swap includes collateral requirements intended to mitigate credit risk. The
University is required to post collateral under the agreement when the fair value is less than a negative
£5,000,000 at the University’s current credit rating.  As of June 30, 2024, and June 30, 2023 there
was no collateral posted by the University. The counterparty”s credit rating from Moody's Investors
Service was Baad,

Additionally, the 2008 Swap exposes the University to basis risk, which is the risk that arises when
variable interest rates on a derivative and an associated bond or other interest-paying financial
instruments are based on different indexes. The University is also exposed to interest rate risk which
is the risk that as the swap index decreases, the University's net payment on the 2008 Swap increases,

The 2008 Swap is based on an International Swaps and Derivatives Association, Inc. Master
Agreement, which includes standard termination events such as failure to pay and bankruptey, or
termination risk. In addition, the Master Agreement includes additional termination events. 1T the
2008 Swap is terminated, the 2008 Bonds will no longer carry a synthetic interest rate, and the
University may be required to pay an amount equal to the fair value iT it is negative.

Capital Asseis

The following tables present the changes in the various capital asset categories for the University for
fiscal years 2024 and 20323:

Balamce Redmctinms! Balamce
Asset Classification dmme 3, 20LE Adldilions Tramifers Jume 30, 2024
Land §  BASAIN9 5 - 5 - §  RESR199
Land improvesnents and
infrasinsciure U3 ETE 634 b6 555 - 09 543,189
Buiklings TG40 E2S 1,M465.536 £ 797 56,341
Equipeent T4.860.535 21.93] R27 1,400,710 B 302, 652
Lilbrary nequisitions 24,887 536 110506 51300 24,947, 1 346
Right to use subscriptions T000, X LITAZI0 - AT 03T
Construction in progress 1T A55.003 45730774 1586475 120,704,292
Total 1002132 544 52 TTRE0R 1928491 1,141,982 861
Accumnlated depreciation
Land insprowesnents and
infrasirsctiure (60, 962,652) (3.607.263) . (65, 563,91 5)
Bulldings (276,449, BX2) (18,27 035) = (295,076,860}
Equipment (63,008, 357) (4,504,893} (1,392,393} (66,117,587}
Library soquisitions (20,864, 454) 3,191 883) (51.306) {24,005 046 1 )
Right o use subscriptions {2,253 654) (2481581} - 4,735,135}
Toeal (424,535,099 (32A12,658) (1,443,699 (455,504, 958)
Tital capéinl asseds, ned % -EETIS'?ﬁIS-I-S 5 1'._]-5‘.15' 5 1484792 5 686,477,903
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9.  Capiial Assets (continued)

Balange Heduciboms Balamce
Assel Classification Jume 3, 2021 Additisns Transfers June 30, Z0Z3
{xs restated)
Land £ 454514 £ 4033385 -1 = §  B658299
Land improvemess and
finfrasiruchare GR,240,925 5,629,708 OE BT 634
Buaildings A3 674 553 43 816272 . T, 40, 815
Equipment TH 244, 026 4 805 814 1,192,305 TERGI, 535
Litbrary scquisithans 25,197,355 GRA430 408,250 24,887,536
Right 1o use subscmplions 2652194 4,369,518 . 7,001,712
Construction in progress 67,475,212 64,942,043 33,061,262 77,353,993
Toml 1,001,005, 179 127,699,182 26,661,517 1,092,132,544
Accumalated depreciation
Land improvements and
imfrastruciure {SBA51.441) (3,600,200) - (6] 62 G52)
Bl dings (158,335,238} {18,004, 554) - [276,449,822)
Equipmeai (59.515.276) (4,601,971 11,111,260 {63,005 38T
Libeary acquisitions £20,949,103) {323,631} (408,250 {20,864, 454)
Right in use subscriptions {582,573) 1,570.78 . {2,253,654)
Tatal 1497 833,911 (28,322, 1T8) | 11 (424,535,909
Total capital assets, met £ 623261248 5 00ATT,H04 § 55,141,707 § 667596 545

10,

11.

State Building Authority

Certain University facilities, including South Foundation Hall, the School of Education and Human
Services Building (Pawley Hall), the Business and Technology Building (Elliott Hall), the Human
Health Building. and the Engineering Center have been financed in part by State Building Authority
(SBA} bond issuances, which are secured by a pledge of rentals to be received by the State of
Michigan pursuant to an arrangement between the SBA, the State of Michigan, and the Institution.
While the SBA bonds are outstanding, the SBA will hold title to the respective buildings, the State
of Michigan will make annual payments to the SBA for SBA's bond payments, and the University
records the building and pays all operating and maintenance costs. Once the SBA bonds are fully
paid, the SBA transfers title of the building to the institution.

Cash Surrender Valoe of Life Insurance Policies
Included in other assets are the cash surrender value of life insurance policies in the amount of

$443,058 and $617,983 for 2024 and 2023, respectively. The face value of these life insurance
policies totaled $7,933,072 and $7,933,072 in 2024 and 2023, respectively.
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12, Deferred Ouilows of Resources

As of June 30, 2024, the University recorded deferred outflows of §7,237.766, which includes
$658,096 for the accumulated change in fair value of the 2008 Swap, and 36,579,670 for differences
between expecied and actual expericnces in the OPEB valuation in addition to contributions remitted
to the University's retiree health care plan after the measurement date of the plan as discussed in
Note 14. As of June 30, 2023, the University recorded deferred outflows of $7.700,370, which
includes $1,039,847 for the accumulated change in fair value of the 2008 Swap, and 36,660,523 for
differences between expected and actual experiences in the OPEB valuation in addition to
contributions remitted to the University's retiree health care plan after the measurement date of the
plan as discussed in Note 14,

13.  Long-Term Liabilities

Long-term liabilities consist of the following as of June 30, 2024 and 2023:

Ealance Addiliens Balasee Currend
Jmne 30, W2 Tranifers Reduclans Jmne B0, 2014 Porien
Moie gred inagallment
purchase agreemints payible £ S3IE12%8 0§ - % 1,118,238 5 dandgal £ 1,061,303
Genaoral reviemms boeds
Seraes 2024A bowds - IR 13,000 x 15810800 1,034, 000
Usamorized premium s 1,770,716 J608 1La50 006 112,126
Sapiea 20THE bonds 44,795 004 . 1,125, el 43570800 1182000
Usamaortized premiuss 4,522 291 - H3,R5T 4,132,434 ITEATY
Eeries 20TIA bonds 51,500 000 . 40,0 30,550 000 ALE B0
Urarmitzea! premiess 4,707 767 - 353,040 A ATTYY 1341
Beries 2019 bonds 76,555 000 - 1, 380, L1750 1,450, 00
Upsmartoeed premium 1503072 - GEN 228 18850 84T 0ED TS
Series 2016 bonds 103, 105 004 . I 315000 1 00, T, IA¥A 000
Usamortized premium 12,976,174 . T JRE 12,009, 7% YI3ATY
Seriex 2014 bonds 20330000 . 21,330,000 . .
Uramortizad premium 18090 - 1 245,310 : .
EBeries 201 1 bonds LR LT - LUTE00 & Il (e 2,148 )
Serien 2008 Bonds 33,950 D0y - 2080, 0 31,570,006 1, 145, 00
Seried 1998 vanable mie
demand bonds 3,730 Dody - .'.':l.m
1014 Certificates of pariicipalion 10,695 D00 . E..!.H..ﬂll L]
Uramorteed premium El;i,l-'il-l} 2 1__]'.B_v|L __ﬂ!l_ 1%
Totel nole, waiallment
agreement, and bands payvable ITT, oS, T 10800716 d10seEN] 356 RIGREL 155 7,730
Oler lahilitees:
Lubgeription Hability 1307512 2,173,210 LOEL I 3.393,7% LT
Coespensated ahsences TS0 540 1,440,744 1, %550 772,748 il L
Annitics payvable and other 1410317 Lol 1 pL1E bl B [ Bl e 7T A58
Federal poction af’
Perkins boan progres 1 551 ‘___535;.;1_ .
Tetal other lishilitss 13,542 137 EE N EE T 3308 560
Tedsl long-term liabadities ORI 5244 25380 _H&HL :m&m ] 19311, 181
Tiotal long-tere Babilises 00, T8, 100
Lesa eusrreni poetion 11875363 I!EI 1.2
Maoncuerenl portson $§ BGE 852 RO 5 351,058,454
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13,  Long-Term Liabilities (continued)
Eallmnce Addisians Balunce Ciirfedl
Jwne 30, 2022 Trwnslers Reductions June 30, 2023 Portion
_ims restated)
Motn and imallment
perchide sgresinents payahle § 6459024 8 § 1,006,654 5 512058 5 L1236
{reeeral revenne bords:
Series 20220 bonds . 05 D00 - 44,754,000 I, 125,000
Uramortmed premium . 4,743 299 220,008 4,522,201 IR EST
Sevics 202EA bonds 32 155,000 - TS D 31,1540, 4 00y
Ulramiticed premim 5,100 60% 400 B3 4,797,767 593 040
Gerles 2019 bonds 77 BROO0 1,325,000 76, 555,00 1,380,000
Unamaortized premium 16,054,134 125,062 15,039,072 GEE,XI5
Senies 2016 bonds 045, 310 004 T 2005, INKD 103, 105, 000 2315 0oy
Unamortized premium 13,984414 1 a8, 236 12,576,178 06 KT
Bovies 2014 Bondi 22, 190 004 Bl (00 21,340,000 HH), 00
Unamitized premium 043,337 - ok = N ) | B A0 21087
Sefies 201 34 bonds 47,575 D00 . 49 575,000 - !
Unamortized premium 3,504 654 . 31 6 - -
Series 201 3 bonds B 845 00K 010,00 8 3.5, 00K LTS5
Ronies 2008 bonda 35 043 0040 1 595,000 33,950 004 1.080,000
Sotics ET98 vanahle mie
] Basiwds 3,750 000 . 3,750,000 1.T20000
2004 Cestiflcates of pariicipation 1 1,540 0004} B4 000 A ] T, 000
Unamoriized premium RO1544 | 38,0654 653590 127,045
Tonnl ree, destallmend
, i (boeds payabde T4l K00 O 49,538,354 ETOTLELS Y77 165 Thb | B 54 BA T
Oither Habilities:
Subscription beahiliny 1,512 452 1566029 | 570 560 1E07912 1418579
Cmperiaied nlbenes 1291055 1214065 1 00% T8 T501.546 B34,33558
Agnnuilies payable snd other 2,545 563 0,128 141,341 2410327 1T AR
Fesdernl portion of
Perkins joan L - TAZL 321352 -
Total orther linhilities LU 500,000 4,306,219 PNk 13542337 2ET A6
Teaal long-terms luabiliies Fancionidn 54344503 AL D TR, 103 ¥ 2LETS 263
Total long-ferm Fahilitss 0 300 | &) 500 08, 103
Les carrend pertion 1T 480 £36 AT 36
Moscisreni porfion S IELASRIM j 3HEATE R0

MNote and Installment Purchase Agreements Payable
In December 2005, the University entered into a general revenue note payable over 264 months in
the amount of $18,253,776 at a fixed interest rate of 3.785% to finance Phase Il of its Energy Service

Agreement projects.

Required annual payments for the notes payable for the fiscal years ending June 30 are as follows:

2025
2026
2027
2028
Total

Principal Interest Total
5 1,161,303 5 141384 § 1,302,687
1,206,029 5, 639 1,302,688
1.252.477 50,210 1,302,687
B4, 213 7,131 651 344
5 4264022 § 295384 5 4,559,406

18



DRAFT

Oakland University
Maotes to Financial Statements
Jumne 30, 2024 and 2023

13,

Long-Term Liabilitics {continoed)
General Revenue Bonds Fayable

In May 2024, the University issued $18,810,000 of general revenue refunding bonds (20244 Bonds),
with an average coupon mte of 5.00% and a net original issue premium of §1,991,716, The 2024A
Bonds were issued with a final maturity date of March 1, 2039, The procesds were utilized to refund
the Series 2014 general revenue bonds (2014 Bonds) which were utilized to refund the Series 2009
Taxable-Build America Bonds (2009 Bonds) which funded a portion of the Human Health Building
and several infrastructure projects. As a result of the refunding, the University will reduce its

te debt service payments over the remaining 15-vear period by approximately $2,583,000.,
The refunding will result in an economic gain of $2,023,000. The aggregate outstanding principal on
the 2014 Bonds totaled $20.430,000. A trust account was established to redeem the 2014 Bonds on
their call date of August 5, 2024, The assets and liabilities of this trust account are not recorded as
assets or liabilities in the financial statements of the University. The pricing resulted in a 3.57% true
interast cost,

In March 2022, the University entered into a Forward Delivery Bond Purchase Agreement wherehy
the University agreed to issue $44,795,000 of general revenue refunding bonds (20228 Bonds). The
20228 Bonds were priced on April 19, 2022 with a Forward Delivery on December 8, 2022, The
206228 Bonds have an average coupon of 5.00% and a net original premium of $4,743,299, with a
final maturity date of March 1, 2043, The pricing resulied in a 3.93% true interest cost. The proceeds
of the 20228 Bonds were utilized to refund the Series 2013A Bonds which funded the construction
of Oak View Hall; a facilities management building; a 1,240 space parking structure; road
improvements; and an athletic and recreation complex. The refunding will reduce the aggregate debt
service payments over the remaining 20-year period by approximately $4,855.000 and resulted in an
economic gain of $4,234.000. The aggregate outstanding principal on the 2013A Bonds totaled
$48, 160,000, and was redeemed on March 1, 2023 leaving a zero balance as of June 30, 2023,

In March 2022, the University issued $32,155,000 of general revenue refunding bonds (2022A
Bonds), with an average coupon rate of 5.00% and a net original issue premium of $5,282,125. The
2022A Bonds were issued with a final maturity date of March 1, 2042, The proceeds were utilized to
refund the Series 2012 general revenue bonds (2012 Bonds) which funded a portion of the
Engineering Center. As a result of the refunding, the University will reduce its aggregate debt service
payments over the remaining 20-year period by approximately $5,791,000. The refunding will result
in an economic gain of §5,222,000, The aggregate outstanding principal on the 2012 Bonds totaled
£36,770,000, and was redeemed April 19, 2022 leaving a zero balance as of June 30, 2022, The pricing
resulted in a 3.42% true interest cost,

In September 2019, the University issued $79,205,000 of general revenue bonds (2019 Bonds), with
an average coupon rate of 5.00% and a net original issue premium of $18,986,496. The proceeds of
the bond will be used to fund renovations for the following; South Foundation Hall in the amount of
$10.0 million, Varner Hall for $45.0 million, Wilson Hall totaling $14.8 million, an off campus
research facility for $8.5 million, Central Heating Infrastructure in the amount of $35.0 million,
renovations at Dodge Hall for $3.0 million, and other capital projects. The 2019 Bonds were issued
with a final maturity of March 1, 2050. The pricing resulted in a 3.29% true interest cost.
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13.

Long-Term Linbilities (continued)

In June 2016, the University issued $113,130,000 of general revenue bonds (2016 Bonds), with an
average coupon rate of 5.00% and a net original issue premium of $20,773,191. The proceeds were
ufilized to fund the construction of a new 750 bed student residence complex (Hillerest Hall),
expansion of the Oakland Center, and other capital projects. The 2016 Bonds were issued with a final
maturity of March 1, 2047, The pricing resulted in a 3.66% true interest cost.

In December 2014, the University parinered with UMB Bank to issue Certificates of Participation
(2014 Certificates) for $14,225,000 at a net original issue premium of $1,729.013. The proceeds were
used 1o finance the construction and installation of & combined heat and power cogeneration system
at the central heating plant on the University's campus. The 2014 Certificates consist of four term
certificates with maturity dates ranging from July 1, 2022 to July 1, 2031, yield rates ranging from
2.45% to 3.45%. The pricing resulted in a 3.88% true interest cost. The debt service on the 2014
Certificates will be funded by monthly payments the University will make through July 203 1.

In October 2014, the University issued $28,060,000 of general revenue refunding bonds (2014
Bonds), with an average coupon rate of 4.98% and a net original issue premium of $4,383,960. The
2014 Bonds were issued with a final maturity date of March 1, 2039, The proceeds were utilized to
refund the Series 2009 Taxable-Build America Bonds {2009 Bonds) which funded a portion of the
Human Health Building and several infrastructure projects. The refunding of the 2009 Bonds was
subject o a redemption price equal to 103% of the par value of Bonds redeemed, or 3924430 to be
amortized over the term of the 2014 Bonds and is recorded as a deferred outflow, As a result of the
refunding, the University will reduce its aggregate debt service payments over the remaining 24 year
period by approximately $3,016,000. The refunding will result in an economic gain of $2.251,000.
The aggregate outstanding principal on the 2009 Bonds totaled $30,815,000, and was redeemed
Movember 28, 2014 leaving a zero balance as of June 30, 2015. The pricing resulted in a 3.56% true
interest cost. The 2014 Bonds were refunded with the issuances of the 2024A Bonds,

In June 2013, the University issued $57,860,000 of general revenue bonds (2013A Bonds), with an
average coupon rate of 4.98% and a net original issue premium of $7,141,047. The proceeds were
utilized to fund the construction of Oak View Hall; a facilities management building; a 1,240 space
parking structure; road improvements; and an athletic and recreation complex. The 2013A Bonds
were issued with a final maturity of March 1, 2043, The pricing resulted in a 4.03%: true interest cost.
The 20134 Bonds were refunded with the issuances of the 20228 Bonds.

In June 2013, the University issued $23,290,000 of federally taxable general revenue refunding bonds
{20138 Bonds), with an average coupon rate of 2.99%. The proceeds were utilized to refund the
Series 2004 general revenue refunding bonds (2004 Bonds) with an average coupon rate of 5.12%.
The advance refunding of the 2004 Bonds resulted in a deferral on carly extinguishment of $1,134,224
that will be amortized over the term of the 20138 Bonds and is recorded as a deferred outflow, The
2013 Bonds were issued with a final maturity date of May 15, 2026, The pricing resulted in a 2.99%
truse interest cost,
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13. Long-Term Liabilities {continued)

In June 2008, the University issued 553,280,000 of general revenue refunding bonds (2008 Bonds) to
refund the 2001 general revenue bonds (2001 Bonds). The 2008 Honds are variable-rate demand
abligations with a maturity date of March 1, 2031. In conjunction with this issue, the University
terminated the related 2001 Swap at a termination value of $4,860,000 paid to the counterparty and
reissued a new 2008 Swap synthetically fixing the rate on the full amount of the issue to 3.37%. The
2001 Swap termination cost has been deferred and will be amortized over the term of the refunding
bonds and is recorded as a deferred outflow. The 2008 Bonds were issued with a final maturity date
of March I, 2031.

The following table summarizes debt service requirements for the outstanding bonds and certificates

payable as of Jume 30, 2024;
Hedging
Derivative,
Principal Interest Met Total
2025 £ 11,765,000 § 15,302,108 5 (39.748) § 27,027,362
2026 12,230,000 14,675,651 [36,%44) 26,868,707
2027 12,895,000 14,091,763 (3287TT) 26,953,886
2028 14,245,000 13,519,663 (26,339 27,738,320
2029 15,670,000 12,882,584 (19.534) 28,533,350
2030-2034 67,310,000 54,163,274 (17,5000 121,455,774
2035-2039 67,825 000 IBTTGA16 - 106,604,416
2040-2044 66, 6RO, 000 21,264,250 - 87,944,250
2045-2049 41,950,000 6,660,500 - 48,610,500
2050 4,900,000 249,500 - 5,235, 500
315,560,000 £ 191,589,011 £ (172.940) 5 506,976,071

Linamoriized premium 37,092,859
$352,652.850

Other Liabilities

Accrued compensated absences include accrued vacation and sick pay for University employees.
University employees earn vacation and sick leave benefits based, in part, on length of service.
Vacation pay is fully vested when earned. Upon separation from service, employees are paid
accumulated vacation and sick pay baged upon the nature of separation. Certain limitations have been
placed on the hours of vacation and sick leave that employees may accumulate and carry over for
payment a1 termination, Unused hours exceeding these limitations are forfeited.
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13

14,

Long=Term Liabilities (continued)

Charitable gift annuities are arrangements in which donors contribute assets to the University in
exchange for a promise by the University to pay a fixed amount for a specified period of time
{typically for the life of the donor or other beneficiary). Annuities payable are established based on
the present value of the cstimated annuity payouts over the life expectancy of the doner or other
beneficiary.

In September 2013, the University received a charitable gift annuity (CGA) totaling $7.0 million as a
result of realizing a donor's bequest, Based on the life expectancy of the annuitant at the time the
CGA was received, the University's obligation, or present value lability, of the annuity payments
approximated $3.7 million. The annuity payable was approximately §1.7 million and $1.9 million as
of June 30, 2024 and 2023 respectively.

Subseriptions

The University obtains the right to use vendors' information technology software through varipus
long-term contracis, Payments are fixed anmually. Subscription asset activity of the University is
included in Note 9. As of June 30, 2024, and 2023 the University had $3,398,992 and 53,307,912 in

guhscription liability, respectively.

Future principal and interest payment requirements related to the University's subscription liability
at June 30, 2024 are as follows:

Principal Interest Total
2025 £ 1,7743% § B3564 $ 1857958
2026 [, 104,744 33,1491 1,137,935
2027 290,691 15,084 305,775
2028 229,163 5,132 234,295
Total 8§ 3398992 § 1356971 3 3535963

Postemployment Benefits Other than Pensions

Plan Deseription

In addition to the employee benefits discussed in Note 15, the University provides postemployment
healthcare benefits to eligible University retirees and their spouses as part of a single-employer
defined benefit plan. The plan is administered by the University, Substantially all University
employees may become eligible for coverage if they meet retirement eligibility requirements, In
general, retirees at least 62 years of age with 15 years of service who were hired before July 1, 2005,
depending on the employee group, are eligible for medical benefits in accordance with various labor
agreements or within the provisions of University policy. Employees with 25 years of service are
cligible for retirement at any age. Except for certain prior retirees, the University shares the cost of
coverage with retirees, charging the retirees a comribution equal to the excess of the prevailing
premium cost of coverage over a stipulated University subsidy amount. At June 30, 2024, the
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14.

Postemployment Benefits Other than Pensions (continued)

University had 1,773 active employces in the plan and 172 retirees currently receiving
pastemployment healthcare benefits, Certain employees hired after July 1, 2005, depending on the
employee group, may be eligible for participation in the University’s postemployment health care
benefits as “access only™ for retirees and spouses, at retiree rates, paid in full by the retiree.

Contributions

The contribution requirements of plan members and the University are established in accordance with
various labor agreements or within the provisions of University policy. For the year ended June 30,
2024, the University and plan members receiving benefits contributed $1.6 million and $1.0 million,
respectively, to the plan. Approximately 62% of total premiums were paid by the University with the
remaining 38% paid by plan members., Required contributions for plan members ranged from $60 to
51,254 per month for retiree-only coverage, and from 3149 10 53,010 per month for retiree and spouse

coverage.

For the year ended June 30, 2023, the University and plan members receiving benefits contributed
£1.5 million and $0.9 million, respectively, to the plan. Approximately 63% of total premiums were
paid by the University with the remaining 37% paid by plan members. Required contributions for
plan members ranged from $40 to $994 per month for retiree-only coverage, and from $101 1o $2,385
per month for retiree and spouse coverage.

Funded Status and Funding Progress

GASBE Statement No. 75 requires the measurement of OPEB expense as it is incurred, rather than as
it is funded. The University has decided that future benefits will not be prefunded; however, the
University has designated assets to meet future obligations through the creation of a Board-approved,
quasi-endowment valued at approximately $33.1 million, which will be used 10 offset annual OPEB
contributions, Other postemployment health care benefits are financed on a pay-as-you-go basis,

OFER Liability and Actuarial Assumptions

As of June 30, 2024, the University reported a lisbility for OPEB totaling $26.9 million. The liability
was measured as of June 30, 2023, and was determined by an actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2023,
which used updated procedures to roll forward the liability to June 30, 2024,

As of June 30, 2023, the University reported a liability for OPEB totaling $29.0 million, The liability

was measured as of June 30, 2022, and was determined by an actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2021,
which used updated procedures to roll forward the liability to June 30, 2023.
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14. Postemployment Benefits Other than Pensions (continued)

The liability was calculated based on the following actuarial assumptions:

024 2023
Discount Eatefinvestment rate of returmnm® 3.65% 3. 5404
Salary increases including inflation 3.00% 3.00%

Mortality basis Pri-2012 White Collar Pri-2012 White Collar
Mortality Table with Mortality Table with
generational projection  generational projection
using Projection Scale using Projection Scale
MP-2021 MP-202 1
Metuarial Cost Method Entry Age Mormal Entry Age Normal
Health Care Trend Rate 3.7% - 6. 7% over &) 3.7% - 5.8% over 60
years vears
*® 20 Year Tax-Exempt Municipal Bond Yield based on the 20-year Bond Buyer GO Index,
The plan has not had a formal actuarial experience study performed.
Schedule of Changes in Total OPEB Liability and Related Ratios
2024 2023
Total OPER Liability Tt tharesamds
Service Cost 5 Be0 % 1,108
Interest on total OPEB liability 1,027 718
Changes of benefit terms 5 A
Effect of economic/demographic gains or (losses) 1,502 -
Effect of assumption changes or inputs {3,870} {4,2686)
Benefit payments (1,618} (1.483)
Net Change in total OPEB liability (2,099) {3,923)
Total OPEB Liability, beginning 28,953 32,876
Total OPEB Liability, ending 3 26854 § 28953
Covered Payroll $ 137,215 § 130,098
Total OPERB liability as a %6 of coverced payroll 19.57% 22.25%
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14. Postemployment Benefits Other than Pensions (continued)

OFER Expense, Deferred Outflows and Inflows of Resources Related to OPEB

The University recognized OPEB expense of $0.6 and $0.3 million at June 30, 2024 and June 30,
2023, respectively.

The University reported deferred outflows and inflows of resources related to OPEB from the
following sources:

2024 2023

Deferred Deferred Deferred Deferred

ChutMow Infow Drut Mo Inflow
Differences between
expected and actual
experience § 2740232 5 1,192474  § 1950685 § 1,463,491
Change of assumptions § 2,393,926 § 11,098,992 § 3,091,864 § 9787498
Contributions made after
mensurement date § 1445512 5 . 5 1,617,974 5 -

Changes of assumptions: For 2024 and 2023, the discount rate increased to 3.65% and 3,54% respectively.
The discount rate was 2.16% and 2.21% in 2022 and 2021, respectively. The decrease in liability is primarily
due to a decrease in the health care trend rate and plan participation.

Amounts currently reporied as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to
OPEB will be recognized as a reduction of the University's OPEB expense as follows:

Year ending June 30
2025 £ (1,104,359
2026 1,019,806)
2027 (1,075.244)
2028 (1,514,902)
2029 (1,208,217
2030 {457,794)

Thereafter (776,986)
Total § (7,157,308)
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14. Postemployment Benefits Other than Pensions (continued)

Sensitivity of the OPEB Liability to Changes in the Disconnt and Healtheare Cost Trend Rates

The following presents the OPER liability of the University, calculated using the current discount and
healthcare rates. The following also reflects what the University’s OPER liability would be if it were
calculated using rates that are one percentage point lower or one percentage point higher than the

current rate:
Year ending Junc 30, 2024
1% Decreasc Curreni Rate 1% Increase
Discount Rate:
Total OPEB Liakility £ 20,794,105 £ 26,554,255 5 24331490
Health Care Trend Rate:
Total OPEB Liakility £ 25764178 ¥ 26,854,255 5 28171673
Year ending June 30, 2023
1% Decrense Current Rate 1% Increase
Dizcount Rate:
Total OPER Liability § 31,956,126 £ 28952939 § 25982162
Health Care Trend Rate:
Total OPEB Liability 5 27900419 £ 289520930 £ 30,090,675

Projections of benefits for financial reporting purposes are based on the substantive plan (the plan as
understood by the employer and plan members) and include the types of benefits provided at the time
of valuation and the historical pattern of sharing benefit costs between the emplover and plan members
to that point.

15, Employee Beneliis

The University has contributory, defined-contribution retirement plans for all qualified employees.
The plans consist of employee-owned retirement contracts funded on a current basis by employer
contributions. Participants may elect to contribute additional amounts to the plan within specified
limits. The plans are administered by Teachers Insurance and Annuity Association — College
Retirement Exquities Fund (TIAA-CREF) and Fidelity Investments. Contribaions by the University
for the vears ended June 30, 2024 and 2023 were 518,510,636 and $17,542,951, respectively.
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15 Employee Benefits (continued)

11

The University also maintains a noncontribuiory, defined-benefit retirement plan, which is not open
to new participants. The plan is administered by TIAA-CREF. At January 1, 2023, the date of the
most recent actuarial valuation, the plan had a total liability of approximately $63,078 and was over
funded by approximately §52,270,

The University provides benefits to eligible employees for unused sick days upon retirement and
unused vacation days upon termination. This liability is accounted for as part of accrued compensated
absences.

The University is self-insured for workers' compensation and unemployment compensation.
Liabilities for claims incurred but not reported under these self-insurance programs have been
established. Changes in the self-insured employee bencfit liabilities during 2024, 2023, and 2022
were considered current and are as follows:

2024 223 2022
Balance, beginning of year 5 160,145 5 423,646 § 274,461
Claims imcurred and changes in estimiaics 400,371 (48,251) 267,308
Claim payments (333,774) {215.250) {118,123}
Balance, end of year 5 116,741 5 160,145 5 4236406

Deferred Infows of Resources

The University accounts for deferred inflows of resources in accordance with authoritative guidance,
The University recorded deferred inflows of $26,393,602 as of June 30, 2024. This amount is
comprised of $12,291,466 from changes in OPEB assumptions, $2,763,146 from an early
extinguishment of general revenue bonds, $2,289,565 from lease agreements, irrevocable split-
interest agreements where the University acts as the trustee in the amount of $3,965,268 and an
additional irrevocable split-interest agreement held by a third party in which the University has
£5,084, 157 beneficial interest in assets held by others. The University’s beneficial interest in this
charitable remainder trust is held by Morgan Stanley and also recognized as an asset al fair value,
Beneficial interest in assets held by others are classified in Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy, is not
traded on an open market, and is valued using an approach that utilizes the present value of annuity
payments based on the life expectancy of the annuitant,

As of June 30, 2023, the University recorded deferred inflows of 22,677,807, which includes
£11,250,989 from changes in OPEB assumptions, $1,150,515 from early extinguishment of general
revenue bonds, 52,273,946 from lease agreements, an irevocable split-interest agreement where the
University acts as the trustee in the amount of §3,343,764, and an additional irrevocable split-interest
agreament held by a third party in which the University has $4,658,593 beneficial interest in assets

held by others.
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17.

18.

19.

Liability and Property Insarance

The University is one of 11 Michigan universities participating in the Michigan Universities Self-
Insurance Corporation (M.U.5.1.C.) which provides insurance coverage for educators legal liability,
commercial general liability, property loss, automobile liability, and automobile physical damage
coverage. M.U.5.1.C. provides coverage for claims in excess of agreed-upon deductibles,

Loss coverages, except for the automobile physical damage program, are structured on a three-layer
basis with each member retaining a portion of its losses, M.LL5.1.C. covering the second layer, and
commercial carriers covering the third, Automobile physical damage coverage is structured on 4 two-
layer basis with no excess coverage from a commercial carrier. Commercial general liability,
automobile lability, and property coverage are provided on an occurrence basis. Educators legal
liability coverage is provided on a claims-made basis. The payments made to M.US.LC. and
premiums to excess and reinsurance carriers reflect the claims experience of each university, Property
insurance coverage is provided outside of the M.ULS.L.C. program.

Contingencies and Commitments

In the normal course of its activities, the University is a party in various legal actions, Although some
actions have been brought for large amounts, the University has not experienced any significant losses
or costs, The University and its legal counsel are of the opinion that the outcome of asserted and
unasserted claims outstanding will not have a material effect on the financial statements.

The University is the guarantor on certain faculty and staff residence mortgages. As of June 30, 2024,
the amount subject to guarantes by the University was 53,892,133,

The estimated costs to complete construction projects in progress is $31.7 million as of June 30, 2024,
due in large part to the construction costs associated with the renovation of West Center for $11.1
million, improvements to O'Dowd Hall, Dodge Hall, and Kresge Library in the amount of $2.8
million, Meadow Brook Hall Visitor Center for $2.7 million, Secience Complex renovation for $2.5
million, South Foundation Hall renovation in the amount of $1.7 million, Human Health Building
improvements of $1.3 million, and various campus enhancement projects totaling an additional $9.6
million. The South Foundation Hall project is funded from the State Capital Outlay for £30.0 million,
£10.0 million from the 2019 Bonds, and $4.2 million from University resources. The various other
construction projects are funded from University resources,

Expenditures by Natural Classification

Operating expenses by natural classification for the years ended June 30, 2024 and 2023 are
summarized as follows:

2024 2023
Employee compensation and benefits 5 245922107 5 236,808,408
Supplies and other services 77,645,087 70,724,578
Student aid 8,494,686 7.687,190
Depreciation 32,411,658 28,222,178
Total 5 364,474,538 $ 343,442,414
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M, Cash Flow Statement

The table below details the reconciliation of the net operating loss to net cash used by operating

activities:
2024 2023
Operating loss % (BB, 878,634) 5 (75,400,960)
Adjustments to reconcile net operating loss
to net cash used by operating activitics

Depreciation expense 32 412,658 28,222 178

Changes in assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable, net (17,154,637) 6,764,361
Inventories 74,125 211,684
Deposits and prepaid expense 240,197 (B77,064)
Student loans receivable 147,519 16,431
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 679,891 (5,663 ,663)
Accrued payroll 681,133 837,165
Compensated absences 271,193 210351
Unearned revenue 7671248 1,758,937
Deposits (153,629} 0% 376
Federal portion of student loan program (321,552) (127.938)
OPER liability (2,098,684) (3,922.6200
Deferred outflow of resources B, 853 1,131,394
Deferred inflow of resources 1,040,477 1,584,478

Met cash used by operating activities % (65,306,842) § (44,625 890)

21. Related-Party Transactions

The Oakland University Foundation (Foundation) is a related party of the University. The Foundation
had net assets of $269,255 and $247,720 as of June 30, 2024 and 2023 respectively, consisting of
three endowment funds. The University's financial statements do not include the Foundation’s assets
or activity,
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Schedule of Changes in Total OFPERB Liability and Related Ratios

24 013 2011 2024 205} 019 iR
Tetal (IFEBR Linbiliy It housamdy
Karvice Cost H 850§ 1008 % 1361 8 a1 ™ % B4 8 o8]
Irvierest on iotal CIPER lishiity 1027 I8 e i 30 289 1218 1,05
Charges of benefit ferms - ' - < . !
Effect of econcsinc/demogimphie
gains or (los) 1,502 [2.006) 4 336
Efest of axsamption changes o
Sl {3,670 {4.20) {3.478) 5155 (3503} {1079 (2,973}
Beneial paymenty {151%) {1,483} {1,829 {1,700} (1,683 {1,552 (1B}
Med Change In foinl OPEB labifiy (2.0 (3,923} (7159} 5567 1,100 (63 (2,814
Total OPED Lisbilicy, beginning 28553 3204 80,033 34,868 33,353 11,897 14811
Tatal (IFER Linbilkty, ending § A5 S5 M3 5 JRETE 8 J005 M4 5 1A 5 N
eI
Covered Paymoll £ 137215 5 1% 5 13547 8§ DM M5 §F 129568 5 125045
oot} DRCT kel mh . Y of 19.57% 2229% 14.60% 0 05% 25.50% 25.75% I7.19%

covered paymoll

Changes of benefit terms: There were no changes in the benefit terms in 2024, 2023, 2022, 2021, 2020, 2019, or

2018,

Changes of assumptions: For 2024 and 2023 the discount rate increased to 3.65% and 3.54% respectively. The
discount rate was 2.16% and 2.21% in 2022 and 2021, respectively. The decrease in linbility is primarily due to a
decrease in the health care trend rate and plan participation.

GASB Statement No. 75 requires the measurement of OPEB expense as it is incurred, rather than as it is funded.
The University has decided that future benefits will not be prefunded; however, the University has designated assets
to meet future obligations through the creation of a Board-approved, quasi-endowment valued at approximately
£33.1 million, which will be used to offset annual postem ployment benefit contributions.

Mote: GASB 75 was implemented in fiscal year 2018, These schedules are being built prospectively. Ultimately
10 years of data will be presented.



